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Company Structure” =~ ~
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America Archi Colors Group Ltd
(BVI) 100%

Beijing Arch Technology Co Ltd.
(PRC)

PAINTS AND CONTRACT SERVICES

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Creative Sense Industrial Ltd.
(HK)

COAL TRADING

Goal Green Ltd.
BVI)

Gold Tat Group International Ltd.
(formerly known as “Mobile Telecom
Network (Ho(ldm)gs) Limited")

HK)

TELECOMMUNICATION (Note 1)

Man Xin Ltd.
(BVI)

Go Wealthy Investment Ltd.
(HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Grand Rich Human Resources Ltd.
(HK)

Hai Tai Ltd. Grand Fund International Ltd
(BVI) (HK)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

INVESTMENT HOLDING

AT THRFESARAR]
(PRC)

Hai Yue Chemicals Co. Ltd. COAL TRADING
(HK)

YIRS AT AR TS A PR AR
(PRC)

Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and
Chemical Ltd.

OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS

5
Jin Long Group Ltd. 100% OIL TRADING
®VI)

FIREEZCRYI) AR AR

Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd.
(HK) (PRC)

BINRBEWERR AT
(PRC)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING MINING BUSINESS

PetroAsian Energy Ltd.
(HK)

PetroAsian Energy Exploration
Development Ltd.
HK

PetroAsian Energy Finance Ltd.
(formerly known as “Jin Xin Investment Ltd."”)
(HK)

INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDER (Note 2)

PetroAsian Energy Group Ltd.
(BVI)

Honour Bright Investments Lt
(BVI)

PetroAsian Energy International Ltd. INVESTMENT HOLDING Northeast Oil (China) 75 A BT s ALk R B
(Cayman Islands) Development Co. Ltd. EKE(%K%A

INVESTMENT HOLDING Merry Boom Investment Ltd. INVESTMENT HOLDING OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS
(HK)

Wing Shing Chemical Macao
Commercial Offshore Co. Ltd.
(Macao)

INVESTMENT HOLDING

Global Sougkaer Petroleum

Topact Holdings Ltd.

Winner Trend Enterprises Ltd.
(BVI) (Cyprus)

(Kazakhstan)
EXPLOITATION DRILLING

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

‘Wing Shing Chemical International Ltd. Notes:
V1)
1. Company name changed on 16 July 2013

2. Company name changed on 15 October 2013.

Wing Shing Colours Ltd.
(HK)
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TRBEE

Mr. Poon Sum &7 &£
Honorary Chairman 4822 f&

The Company was conservatively leveraging the strengths

on its solid base assets, new businesses and efficient

decision-making process to achieve high growth and to

reduce our risk profile.
ARrIEBNAERREERNEE - $iEBRARARBRE
SHZED - NEFaEREFEERR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of PetroAsian Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to all shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated financial
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

BAIER

AAERERFREBRERERAFDTAR
AhEFEe(EFe ) ARRFTMERRE
(BERDREARBREMBLR (T A%
BDHE_ZT-—NF=A=+T—HILFEZ
REZIZAVIEFRE -
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Chairman’s Statement

TRHES

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
recorded a consolidated sales revenue of approximately to
HK$982,327,000 (2013: HK$991,810,000), representing a slightly
decrease 0.96% as compared with the previous year, while loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$151,155,000 (2013: HK$115,255,000),
representing a increase of 31.15% as compared with the previous

year.

Corporate Development

In the reporting period, the world economy recovered moderately,
while geopolitical unrest continued. Although China’s economy
operated generally steadily with a slowed growth rate, the Group
faced of the complicated domestic and international economic
environment, especially in oil and gas industry. In addition, the
fluctuation of exchange rate in Renminbi affected the profit margin
of the Group’s trading businesses. The Group implemented a
conservative and sustainable approach but the overall result was

still suffering a loss.

Since the largest oil and gas companies were changing their
development policies, it affected the business development of the
Group, especially the newly acquired business in the Republic of
Kazakhstan. Most of the planned developments were delayed and
suspended. As the published announcement on 2 May 2014, the
business in the Republic of Kazakhstan was failure to meet the first
year guaranteed profit. As a result, the corresponding action has

been made by the management.

B RE
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#082,327,0007T( = B — = £ : # K&
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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRES

Furthermore, rising costs and oil price fluctuation were other
problems for all the upstream oil and gas companies. In face
of these situations, the Company is actively exploring for
business opportunities in other sectors to diversify our business
development into industries that provide better returns for the
shareholders. In view of the increase in environmental awareness
and strong demand of natural gas domestically, the Group is
studying projects related to clean energy. That would be in the
line with the business direction of the Group and also broaden the

sources of income.

Looking forward, the Group remains committed to exploring new
business opportunities outside the solid operational foundation
it has created with its core businesses and will continue to focus
on improving profitability and exploring potential investment,
partnership, and business development opportunities as necessary
to enhance Shareholders returns.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the members of the Board, the management
and all our dedicated staff for their invaluable services during the
previous year. | would also like to thank our Shareholders, business
partners and stakeholders who have been supportive over the

years.

By order of the Board

Poon Sum

Honorary Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Management
Discussion
and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBmR N

OVERVIEW ON CONSOLIDATED OPERATING
RESULTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$982,327,000 (2013: HK$991,810,000),
representing a slight decrease of 0.96% from the year of 2013. The
Group'’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$151,155,000 (2013: HK$115,255,000),
representing an increase of 31.15% over the year of 2013.

Slightly decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable to
decrease in revenue in crude oil and service contract segments. The
Group'’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was mainly as a result of the following: (1) recognition of losses
from changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
amounting to approximately HK$28,785,000 (2013: HK$3,000,000),
(2) recognition of fair value of share-based payments amounting
to approximately HK$22,520,000 (2013: HK$16,460,000),
(3) recognition of impairment losses of assets amounting to
approximately HK$32,177,000 (2013: HK$30,046,000) and (4)
settlement of Hong Kong profits tax for the years of assessment from
1996/97 to 2011/12 amounting to approximately HK$15,940,000
(2013: Nil).

Excluding the above (1), (2), (3) and (4) totaling approximately
HK$99,422,000 (2013: HK$49,506,000), the Group's loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company would be approximately
HK$51,733,000 (2013: HK$65,749,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Commodity trading

In the reporting period, the oil products trading business contributed
the majority revenue of the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$841,489,000 (2013: HK$797,799,000) and representing
85.66% of the Group’s revenue (2013: 80.44%), resulted in an
increase of 5.48% as compared with last year. A total of 16,075
tons (2013: 22,214 tons) and 155,014 tons (2013: 127,872 tons)
fuel oil have been traded in China and in Malaysia respectively, and
maintained gross profit.

During the year, Chinese economy underwent a transformation and
correction while the overall economic condition was depressed with
a lower import and export figure, though China become the largest
global net importer of oil in the fourth quarter of 2013, in turn
directly affected the energy industry. In addition, the restructuring
of the two largest oil and gas companies in China facilitated a new
order in the industry. Our operation teams strictly complied with the
stable and conservative operation strategy during the year to ensure
our operation free from liquidity risk and to guarantee at least a slight
earning in average for the year.

Looking forward into next year, our operation teams will carry out
business in a more steady way. Our operation teams have been
confident in improving turnover and profit margin and maintaining a
stable and healthy cash flow.

RBEHE ARERBESEBEMASE Y
REb W - B4 A 841,489,000 (=F
— =4 : 797,799,000 7T ) R 1k A £ @ U 25
785.66% (T — =4 :80.44%) * BEZE
WH B EFIER5.48% « NP ERERAIEH F
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HIFER -

RNEER PEBEREEDBSLMARZS &
BEOBRANER  EHOEBEZERES &
ER_E-=FENFETEKASZIRK AR
O - BERITEXIEETE  BINLEER
ARBAOMRAR RN EATE TITENH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBmR N

Crude oil

The Group has a 95% interest, held through an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary Northeast Oil (China) Development Company
Limited, in an oilfield project in Fulaerji District near Qigihar City of
Heilongjiang Province of China.

The Group is continuing to monitor and assess the operation in the
Fu 718 and Fu 710 areas, and is finding ways to maximise production
and project profitability. Among all the producing wells, there are
currently nine horizontal wells (four in Fu 710 area and five in Fu 718
area) and twenty vertical wells.

During July and August 2013, Heilongjiang Province suffered from
heavy rain and flooding, our oilfields in Qigihar had been affected.
The production output for the year was lower than that of 2013.
The Group however is expecting normal production this coming year
when the hurdles are overcome.

The Group is working diligently to reduce production costs and to
improve operating efficiency. Nitrogen will be employed in the next
financial year in the steaming process, which is a proven way to
enhance production with minimum additional cost. The Group has
also decided to work over some old wells in the future to maximise
production output.

Concurrently, to further improve operating efficiency, the Group has
reorganised the subsidiary’s management structure and continued
to streamline the workforce. The senior management of the Group
closely oversees and manages the whole operation, with the aim
to apply performance-based technical management to increase oil
production.

Other businesses

The Group approaches to maintain its loyal customers and suppliers
for chemical products trading business, a revenue of approximately
HK$119,783,000 was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$144,855,000), representing a decrease of 17.31%. The
decrease is mainly due to the fact that the Group disposed of its
business within chemical products segment in China since October
2012. On the other hand, another subsidiary within this segment
which is based in Beijing and providing painting services, recorded a
total revenue of approximately HK$39,863,000 for the year ended
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$19,817,000), representing an increase of
101.16%.

5 Y::

FEBFER—RRAEZ2ENBRRRIEAM(F
B)BERERAT  HEURNTEBRIEEER
M2 BHMEMEERZ 95% 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFN WKk TN

In November 2012, the Group acquired new business with 46.77%
equity interest of Topact Holdings Ltd (“Topact”) with control
obtained, the new business is principally engaged in exploitation
of crude oil and natural gas, production of crude oil products,
explore drilling, crude oil and gas field and oilfield construction and
installation works in the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”). For
the year ended 31 March 2014, a set of oil drilling equipment has
been successfully leased to local Kazakhstan constructor, recording a
total revenue of approximately HK$8,476,000.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement with a vendor to
acquire the above new business, the vendor is required to reimburse
the Group 46.77% of the shortfall if Topact is unable to achieve a
profit after income tax expenses and non-controlling interests of
HK$20,000,000 for each of the years ending 31 December 2013,
2014 and 2015. In May 2014, it is certified that Topact has recorded
a loss in its audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and therefore the vendor should pay to the
Group an amount equivalent to HK$9,354,000.

The Group has an effective 34.4% interest in a vanadium mineral
project in the Xiaowujiang vanadium mining region, Yuging County,
Guizhou Province, China. Management of this business is being
undertaken by the major shareholder of the project company. The
project is still under the process of applying the exploitation license.
In recent years, both the central and local governments of China
exercise stringent control over the mining industry including in
particular the granting of new mining permits. Approval has now
been granted by the Department of Land and Resources of the
Guizhou Province of China and this approval, which is granted at the
provincial level, has been notified to the Department of Land and
Resources of the Zunyi City of Guizhou for further processing.

RZZBE—ZF+— A "EEWKHE T Topact
Holdings Ltd ([Topactl) #7275 .2 46.77 % A& i
WHEBEE - TEBEERRET AN LR
((MRERIME D) HERTRERRIAR - £ER
HEM  BIREH - FARAATAREBER
REZETR - RBEE-_T—WNF=A=+—H1t
FE  —EAREBRZEXRNAE FRERINE
EHEER S5k 1)E% 8,476,000 7T °

REE-—ZBEARRBELATERILIZEE
W& fWTopact REERBZ T —=F - =%
—NER-E-—RAE+-_RA=+—HIEESE
BN 15 R P15 70 5 S S 3E 8 1 M 4 A 1R U BB
20,000,000 7T * BIE 75 78 [\ 2N 5 B {8 1<) A2 R KT8
246.77% - WM_E—MER A - BFE - Topact
EREE-T—=F+-A=+—HIEFEZK
BIZGAVBRETHRGEE - Bt - EHER
INE[E 75 # 9,354,000 72 HEFIE ©

REBR —ERTEENEHRE R NSTIE
BAZINBIHEBER34.4% BEE#R - ZEBE
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FRAERBRT A& 2 B2 » MM PEPRE
77 B ERIE R B iR R bl (B AR T
ERERTAIRE) - PREEMNER L EREREEL
HE - QR RIER B TEZAREM
BEMELERBIFE—FRIE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBmR N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and operating results

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded
a consolidated revenue of approximately HK$982,327,000 (2013:
HK$991,810,000), representing a slight decrease of 0.96% from
the preceding year. The Group recorded consolidated operating
loss of approximately HK$139,227,000 (2013: HK$96,940,000),
representing an increase of 43.62%.

The Group's operating loss increased by 43.62% from approximately
HK$96,940,000 for 2013 to HK$139,227,000 for 2014. This was
attributable to increase in recognition of losses from changes in
fair value of derivative financial liabilities, increase in recognition of
impairment losses of assets including trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, investment properties and prepaid
land lease payment, property, plant and equipment and available-for-
sale investment, and increase in share-based payments for 2014 as
compared with prior year.

On 25 October 2013, the Company issued 370,000,000 unlisted
warrants at HK$0.01 each and could be exercised at any time for
period of three years from the issue date.

Initially, the directors generally considered the warrants were
issued for the purpose of capital financing and considered as equity
instruments and recognise the consideration received to reserve in
equity. However, due to the warrants are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, while the functional currency (Note) of the Company
is United States dollars, the exercise price of the conversion option is
not fixed, as a result the warrants should be classified as derivatives.

As such, the fair value of the warrants was measured on the date
of issuance and an excess the fair value of the warrants over the
consideration received, resulting in an initial fair value difference of
approximately HK$16,340,000 was noted. In view of the significant
initial amount, there is an implication for the scope of HKFRS 2
‘share-based payment’. According to HKFRS 2, it concludes that
unless the facts and circumstances indicate otherwise, the excess
of fair value should be presumed to be evidence that unidentifiable
goods or services should be recognised in accordance with HKFRS
2. Since the issue price per warrant was simply determined
between the Company and the placing agent after considering the
market acceptable price, but without based on a systematic fair
value estimation, the excess of fair value of the warrants over the
consideration received amounting to approximately HK$16,340,000
is therefore presumed and deemed to be for unidentifiable goods or
services, and was recognised immediately as share-based payment in
the consolidated income statement in accordance with HKFRS 2.

Note:  “Functional Currency” — Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates.
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Working capital

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's current assets were kept at
approximately HK$315,277,000 (2013: HK$267,030,000) whilst
current liabilities were approximately HK$268,440,000 (2013:
HK$153,049,000). The current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against current liabilities, was 1.17 (2013: 1.74).
The directors consider that the present working capital level is
conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong and in China.

The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$134,665,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$110,499,000).
The Group’s cash and bank balances were mostly held in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total outstanding bank
borrowings and bonds were approximately HK$101,551,000
(2013: HK$37,488,000) and total assets were approximately
HK$934,955,000 (2013: HK$885,144,000). The bank borrowings
of approximately HK$48,975,000 were short term borrowings and
will be settled by internal resources after the date of statement of
financial position. Except for bonds, the Group did not have any long
term borrowings nor long term debt due to third party.

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowings by the
total assets, was equal to 10.86% at 31 March 2014 (2013: 4.24%).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2014, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group’s bank borrowings and trading facilities:

(1) corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited amount;

(2) Fixed deposit placed with a bank for the bank borrowings and trading facilities
utilised. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has maintained a fixed deposit of
US$3,872,000 (approximately HK$30,033,000) (2013: Nil) for the aforesaid
purpose;
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(3) trade receivables to the extent of carrying amount of HK$89,432,000 (2013:
HK$25,850,000);

(4) 51.00% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast Oil (China)
Development Company Limited, as a register of all monies first share charge. On
28 March 2014, the Group accepted the renewal bank facilities offer to release the
share charge. The administrative procedures of releasing the share charge is being
proceeded; and

(5) the investment properties with carrying value of HK$24,375,000 (2013:
HK$24,888,000).

INFORMATION ON CRUDE OIL RESERVES AS OF
31 MARCH 2014

In preceding year of 2013, the management has appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. (“APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil
reserve and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment
assessment purpose as of 31 March 2013.

In view of the relatively minor changes during the year ended 31
March 2014, the management has decided to perform an internal
tentative assessment of the reserve situation as of 31 March 2014, by
using the same assessment basis of APEX carried out in 2013.

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
"PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the “Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Qilfield, including Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1");
Probable reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3"). Based on
management internal assessment of reserve, the total 1P, 2P (“sum
of P1 and P2”) and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar
oilfields as of 31 March 2014, are approximately 433,000 tons,
843,000 tons and 1,366,000 tons respectively.
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Report on crude oil reserve

Fhmf#EHRE
Proved Probable Possible Total oil
reserve reserve reserve reserve

HEME ME#HE AHEHE HWRhHE
('000 tons) ('000 tons) ("000 tons) ('000 tons)

(Fug) (FHE) (FmE) (Fm8)
Crude oil reserve [Rmf#E
As at 1 April 2012 RZE——FA—H 495 865 1,441 2,801
Adjustment to previous H AR AR IE
estimation* (53) (22) (75) (150)
Production of the year AEEESZ (6) - - 6
As at 31 March 2013 and RZTE—=F=F=+—H
1 April 2013 k=—ZF—=%MA—H 436 843 1,366 2,645
Production for the year AEEEE ®3) - - 3)
As at 31 March 2014 RZZE—F=A=+—H 433 843 1,366 2,642
* As there is no production data of horizontal well available from other comparable * A R AT BUE R B R B LS R 2 A A R B Rk

company in the Fulaerji oilfield and the horizontal well exploitation of the
Company has commenced for not more than three years, the oil producing data
derived from the actual performance. Due to experience and technical reason,
the current production of horizontal wells in the oilfield has not yet achieved the
optimum status.

As the result of the report, the 3P reserve decreased from 2013 to 2014 but the
economic effectiveness does not decline, the best solution for exploitation on
the oilfield is steam injection which will also facilitate the conversion to steam
flooding in the future. The Company believes that after an appropriate technical
transformation and enhancement of site production management, the production
performance will have significantly improvement.

Reserve evaluation criteria

Due to limited production history of the Fulaerji, Qigihar,
Heilongjiang Province, the PRC oilfield, volumetric estimate method
was used to calculate hydrocarbon in place and then recover using
the huff and puff recovery method. As at 31 March 2013, APEX
has used the deterministic method (as opposed to the probabilistic
method) to calculate the reserves estimates, in which three discrete
scenarios were delineated to represent high, medium and low cases.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND
INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the interest
bearing bank borrowings of the Group are on floating rate basis. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to manage
interest rate exposures for hedging purpose only.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has an aggregate of 145 (2013:
182) employees of which about 96 (2013: 121) were located in
mainland China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic
of Kazakhstan and Macau. The employees’ remuneration package
includes salary, bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group's
remuneration policy, employees are rewarded on the basis of
merit and market conditions and in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdiction where the employees
located.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERES

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the
corporate governance matters during the year covering the financial
year ended 31 March 2014 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed
under the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”).

Corporate Governance Code

The Group has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Code except for the deviations as follows:

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INEDs")) of the Company are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Wang Bo, the Chairman of the Company, did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company which was held on 19
September 2013 ("AGM") as he had other business engagement.
The Honorary Chairman and the financial controller of the
Company, the chairman and the members of the audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and corporate
governance committee of the Company attended the AGM. The
Company considers that their presence is sufficient for answering
questions of the shareholders at the AGM.

Code Provision A.6.3 requires that every director should give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.

As Mr. Wang Bo cannot give sufficient time and attention to the
Company'’s affairs, he has tendered his resignation as an executive
director and the chairman of the Company with effect from 30 June
2014.
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Board of Directors

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprised a total of eight Directors,
with four Executive Directors (“EDs"”), one Non-executive Director
("NED") and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs have appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting, or related professional
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. During
the CG Period, fifteen Board meetings were held.

During the CG period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

EEg

R-E-—NE=ZA=1+—B EZTeA4LBHEN
fEE BRI MITES((9TESE]) - —13k
HITEZ([ERTEF D R=MBIIERITE
= HPMA B IERTESHA ETARBIATAR
THHEESHEEER  WEHEEEREPA
B MOEEAHM ARREITTTANES
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REEERHR  EFeMERRESEALRE
BFRAT

Director Board Capacity Attendance
=S EEgH5H HE=R
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 15/15
EREE HMITERRREERE

Mr. Wang Bo ED & Chairman 0/15
TRk E WITEERER

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED 15/15
=R RSEE WiTES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 15/15
EEN & WITEFRU AR

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 5/15
Zaid Latif 524 FEMITESE

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 15/15
PREBIZ S 4 BUIEHITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 15/15
PeRfal BR ST A BUIHITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 14/15
REPIBE BUIHITES

All the fifteen Board meetings were held to discuss and/or approve AARBITTTRARESTE G  YUwmE =K

the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss and/or
resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters, refreshment
of general mandate to issue shares, adoption of new share option
scheme, placing of bonds and non-listed warrants and the corporate
development and decisions.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to
the management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above
has or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship with any of the other Directors.

HERAEENPBREREE RS @M
R/SHEABEEBREEEIE - BMBETRG
ZRRIERE  RRFERES KEESFR
FE LT RAAERE - AN A RIBER BORE -

EXgtEAEENBERE  ERAVBRE
NERHEEENEYNEE - AREERERED
ZEREEEEER - ROXERME LREEM
EEEAEMEERA R RFERNEE - X5
RIGSHMER BRRE

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 21 S IgERIERARAT —T =2 NEFERS



Corporate Governance Report

TRERES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Wang Bo and Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
respectively. Besides, Mr. Poon Sum is the Honorary Chairman of the
Company.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility
for running the Company’s business. Details of the duties of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available
on the Company’s website.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
on 21 June 2013. A summary of this Policy, together with the
measurable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as
below.

Summary of the Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the Board's
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.
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Implementation 1T

As at the date of this report, the Board’'s composition under major RAREAH  EFEEFRZERZEX

diversified perspectives was summarised as follows: BRAanT
Gender Male
145 S
Nationality Chinese 'g%
abs HE 55
Age Group ) 45- )
FRIER 3544 |54 >>764
Year of Service
RS HR 0-5 |5-10 >10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Number of Directors

EEHE
Remuneration Committee FNEESE
The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and FTEZEER _ETRAF A+ —HKIZ ' B2

BT RIFTE A IRSCR B S B E E (AR
B RAREHELER)  HFMEZEENABK
BESE:

has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of
the Remuneration Committee includes:

to make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment.

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group.
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o to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

o to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about
remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for
other executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary.
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For the financial year under review, the Remuneration Committee REEMBFEE  FWEEEER L8177 K
held one physical meeting. The composition of the Remuneration g o THEEeNENKEZEGKESAHE
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee BERAT

members are presented as follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24= ZEE5H HE=R
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 11
BREBIZ S 4 ZEEER

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 71
PR ASHER S 4 B IENITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 1Al
REIESEE BUIHITES

Mr. Poon Sum ED mn
EREE WiTES

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chan Kam
Ching, Paul.

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee for the financial year under review included:

o to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal
system;

o to recommend to the Board the director’s fee for the year
ending 31 March 2014; and

o to consider the remuneration of the director and senior
management.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
for the financial year under review is set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the Report of the
Directors.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code which took effect on 1
April 2012, all Directors should participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has sent reading materials to Directors on regulatory
updates or information relevant to the Company or its business.

The Company has received from all Directors records of their
continual professional development trainings during the CG Period.
Details of which are set out below:

EEHVEEN

REBEFBEE B R/ RENSALEROH
B AR & A SRR RE 12 ©

REEMBFE EFRE ZENERENS
FHE [EERBRAREBEHFER | — A

it o

=S

RER-FT-—FOA—-AERZTA 2 RIE
NFEA6S5F  2REZESETR L FHPEM
BEREZHBEXER - ERRTHRESER
BEEGMEHMERMDERNE AR -

REFHESEHL2EBERNLENRSEMZ LI
EZBEEEER - ARRDEXEEARFIH
HEBzEERMAARER ZHEMHTES -

ARREEETRBEFTROEEAMENERR
BERXERBII2CHE - AEHBEIIWT

Type of Continuous Professional Development

Attending seminar
on regulatory
development and
directors’ duties

HEEERRR
ESHREWNE

Mr. Poon Sum BT v/

Mr. Wang Bo ey Gt

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung mEREE v/

Mr. Poon Wai Kong BRI S v

Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif5e 4

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul  FREBR2% 4 v/

Mr. Chan Shu Kin PRASHER SE 4 v/

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REIBESE v

FEEXBRR2ER

Reading regulatory
updates or
information Visiting
relevant to the Company’s

the Company
or its business

projects in China
or overseas

BIHARAA TN EIHEDT
HEBEE EHERESHZ
R EMRER EH
v v
v
v v
v v
v
v
v
v
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Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the reporting
period.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

For the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band is set out below:

Remuneration band HENEE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two were directors of the Company. Further particulars regarding the
remaining three individuals with the highest emoluments as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set
out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERETRESRS

AATEHRAETRBERA PR ETETA
BEEETESFRXHRESTA(MRETAD) - 1F
REBETEFRZNOTRTH - BEMAES
EHFEERER  MAEEERARSENBERR
BT RAEST RIFTE A AR FE 2R

SREIEE <z p

MNEEERPH  SRAETEERE ZFHEESH
FIEE

Number of individuals
N |

7 500,001 JTE B 1,000,000 7T 2
75# 1,000,001 JTTE % 1,500,000 7T

AEBFHSESNABALES  HPEMEB AL
ANRAEE - BB EMRANGETSBTEEZH
BESZRBRSNE AT ZE—SHEENEE
ISR EMTE13 -
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Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011
and has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Code which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-
executive directors and one executive director of the Company. The
meetings and proceedings are governed by the provisions contained
in the articles of association of the Company for regulating meetings
and proceedings of the Directors. The role and function of the
Nomination Committee includes:

J to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

o to make recommendations to the board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The selection criteria for Directors are the candidate(s) must have
substantial experience in business relevant to the Company or in
corporate management, or in relevant profession and must be able
to contribute effectively to the objectives of the Company. Any
committee member may propose suitable candidates for directorship
for discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after
which the Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such
nomination.

For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held one physical
meeting for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on re-appointment of Directors and adoption of board diversity
policy.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

BEEEGNERREBERESE HEER
mT

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
RE ZEE51H HER
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 1Al
REIESEE ZEEXR

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 11
PREFIZSTAE BUIHITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 71
PR ASHER 4 4 B IENITES

Mr. Poon Sum ED 11
EREE WiTES

The chairman of the Nomination Committee since its establishment
has been Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference
in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences and ensure
co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

J to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Committee should report
to the board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;
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to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing
these reports before submission to the board, the Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
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o to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of controls
and management’s response;

o to review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the board;

. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

o to ensure that the board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

J to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor.

For the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held two regular
meetings for discussing and/or approving the periodic financial
results of the Group, discussing the auditor’s performance, reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budgets.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

. ERSNE LB E AR T E R M ERR B
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Member Committee Capacity Attendance
B EZEE5H HE=E
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 2/2
PR AGHER S 42 ZEEERE

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 2/2
PREBIZ S A BAUFMITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
RBEE BUIHITES

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has
been Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

BEXZBERIE EEXERRBREL -
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed
on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which
are available on the website of the Company. The role and function
of the Corporate Governance Committee include:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held one EERHRE CEBREESER LBITT
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance //\"% o EEARZEENERNKEEGKE
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee EEHEBERZNAT

members are presented as follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
RE ZEE51H HE=R
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 1
PREFIZSTAE ZEEER

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 171
PR A1 B2 4 4 B IENITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED m”m
REEEE BUIHITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 11
EEN & WITERRUISEE

The chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee is Mr. Chan
Kam Ching, Paul.

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee for the CG Period included:

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
o to review the training and continual professional development
of Directors and senior management
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The analysis of the Auditor’s remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:

%R
FERZBRTE

Audit service
Non-audit services

Internal Control

Review of Internal Control System

The Board holds the responsibility for maintaining effective systems
of internal control and for the assessment and management of
risk. Accordingly, a mechanism of inspection and supervision is
established to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets are safeguarded. The Board has authorised the management
team to design, implement and maintain systems of internal control
such as clearly defined job responsibilities of senior management
team and systems relating to investment decision and budgeting.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s systems of internal
controls aim for managing potential risks instead of completely
eliminating all risks. Therefore, internal control can only provide
reasonable assurance for achieving the above objectives in
compliance with basic principles under its inherent limitations.
Moreover, whether internal control is effective or not may also vary
with the changes in the internal or external environment or the
operating conditions of the Group. Accordingly, systems of internal
controls can only render reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
for the achievement of the operating objectives.
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With the establishment of an independent internal audit function
in recent years, the financial condition, operational control and
compliance control are examined and reviewed according to the
risk-based audit plan approved by Board. Different audit areas are
assigned according to risk priority. The Internal Audit Department
monitors compliance with policies and procedures and the
effectiveness of the systems of internal controls. It plays an important
role in the Group's internal governance by performing periodic
checking. After completion of an internal audit, analysis, appraisals,
recommendations related to the activities inspected are delivered to
the respective risk holders. The Internal Audit Department reports
to the CEO, Audit Committee and the Board about the internal
audit findings, internal audit recommendation and the management
responses. The Internal Audit Department will, from time to time,
review and follow up the implementation of internal audit findings
and recommendations.

For the CG Period, the Board was not aware of any significant
issues that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and
adequacy of the systems of internal controls of the Group.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, their training
programmes and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the
review.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during
the CG Period is set out as follows:

ARAZBRAGABEREHEEZEIRER
ZFE -  BEFHEREEERHRETZAR
ABERARE Z HFEBRETNT -

Director Board Capacity Attendance
BEs EZEg54% HE=R
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 2/2
EREE WITERRREBEE

Mr. Wang Bo ED & Chairman 0/2
TR S WITEFHRER

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED 2/2
BRI R L HITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 2/2
SEEN & BITE RV ISEE

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 1/2
Zaid Latif 5o 4 FMITES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 2/2
FREFIZSTAE BUIHITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
PR A6 BR 4 4 BUIHITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
REBTE BUIEHITES

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may however it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of
the Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
EGM for any business specified in such written requisition.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring Director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong:

1. anotice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. a notice in writing signed by that person of his/her willingness
to be elected as a Director together with his/her written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data.
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Such documents shall be lodged with the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of
such documents, the Company shall verify the documents and, if the
proposal is found to be in order, publish an announcement and/or
issue a supplemental circular in respect of the proposal in accordance
with Rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules.

In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days’ or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the
Company.The contact details are as follows:

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited
Suite 3601, Tower 6, The Gateway,
Harbour City, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email: enquiries@petroasian.com
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial BRYEMBRRMENERE
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing EERARSREUAEBRVBERROET - R
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial HPEXELHENEEVBFEE  FFE2
statements for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

. based on a going concern basis; . RIS BISEEERE

. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them . PBEESFECR  WERER &
consistently; and

. made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and . EHEE - A FREBOFIE Kb -
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their reporting BRI R R T % H RS B EBHRESS
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in detail in the B X %56 BB ZERTRE A -
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 55 to 56.

On behalf of the Board REE=S

Poon Sum HITEF

Executive Director EHR

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014 B ZE—WFARA=1+A
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The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities and Geographic Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year by business and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 57. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil). The
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 62 to 63 and note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$464,114,000, representing the amount
standing to the credit of the share premium amount after deduction
of accumulated losses. However, under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 195 to 196.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

Share Options and Warrants
Warrants

On 29 November 2012, it was approved to issue 350,000,000 non-
listed warrants to an external consultant. Each warrant entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one new share of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.18 at any time from 1 March 2013 to 28
November 2015.

On 7 October 2013, it was approved to enter a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to place 370,000,000 non-listed warrants at a placing price of
HK$0.01 each. On 25 October 2013, a total of 370,000,000 non-
listed warrants were successfully issued to certain independent third
parties. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one
new share of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.1526 at
any time from 25 October 2013 to 24 October 2016.

Share options

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, the
shareholders of the Company adopted the new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme"”) which enabled the grant of options to
subscribe up to 460,062,382 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share of the Company as at the said date. The share option scheme
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting on 21 October 2002 expired on 20 October 2012
(the “Expired Scheme”).
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The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted
and to be granted under the Expired Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme was 660,162,382 shares (including share options that have
been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), representing about
14.35% of the issued share capital of the Company, of which
200,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Poon Sum, the Executive
Director of the Company was approved by shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2012. There is no
special condition or specific performance target to be fulfilled before
such share options can be exercised. Each share option is exercisable
at the subscription price of HK$0.198 at any time during the period
from 1 July 2012 to 27 March 2015.

During the financial year, no option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the R REREERAD KD REZNBHE
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the EREERE - REESES 2 EIIERE I B A
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the AW ZEREAREEWAT - BIERERES EIM &R T
expiry of such period to be determined by the Board in its absolute VATT{E - SRMBEIRERTBI R A2 18 - TR IEEB®
discretion and notified to the grantee. No option may be granted T 7 BEARRE -

more than 10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option

Scheme.

Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2014 which have RZZE-—WNF=ZRA=+—H RESEMTEE

been granted under the Expired Scheme are as follows: RHBRAITENBRIEFBNT
Number of Options Price of Company'sshares
RRRE FTROER
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed ~ Outstanding
Exercisable asat during during during sat For Option For Option
Participants Dateof grant  period Erercseprice 1 April 2013 the year the year the year 31 March 2014 granted exercised
#-§-=% H-%-B
BA-B Zh=1-8
582 i piite ke B HERRH REMGR HEREA HATE  CRUBRE  CAREER
000 000 000 000 000 000 000
i h h i h ik ik
Executive Directors
4nEs
Ar. Poon Sum 2May2012 1y 201210 27 March 2015 HK$0.198 200,000 - - - 200,000 - -
Bt 50F CR-IRR-mE EE0.1987
DATRE CE-RECRCfA
Air. Wong Kok Leung 13 August 200413 August 20040 12 August 2014 HKS0.251 (acjusted) 100 - - - 100 - -
FARLE IEmE CEERENATIRE EROSIT
N\Btz8  ZE-EENATZR e

Independent Non-executive Directors

k1
Ar. Chan Kam Ching, Paul 8March 20121 Juy 20120 27 March 2014 HKS0.198 3800 - - (3800) - - -
RigRE b e A S FELI%T

ZRZTAR CERECAIHA
Ar. Chan Shu Kin 28 March 20121 July 2012 to 27 March 2014 HK$0.198 3800 - - (3800) - - -
REEEE -z TE-TEtA-EE EEI9%T

ZAZTAR CERECAZHA
A Cheung Kwan Hung 28March 2012 1y 2012 to 27 Merch 2014 HK$0.198 3800 - - (3800) - - -
RRtE BE CR-TEVERE BR01987

o 11~ S et

21,500 - - (11400) 200,100
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Notes:

1. The price of the Company'’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted.

2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had been ranted any right to subscribe
for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the
period.

Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which selected employees of the Group, including without
limitation any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent
or consultant (with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate
in the Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share
Award Scheme. The purposes and objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to recognise the contributions by certain employees
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. The maximum number
of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the adoption date. The nominal value of the
shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date.

During the financial year, no share was purchased for the Share
Award Scheme.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Poon Sum

Mr. Wang Bo

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung

Mr. Poon Wai Kong

Mr. Zaid Latif

Mr. Chan Shu Kin?

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul?
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung?

! Non-executive Director
2 Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, Mr. Chan Shu Kin and Mr.
Cheung Kwan Hung shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Sum, aged 50, is an Executive Director and one of the
co-founder of the Group. He was the Chairman of the Company
and was subsequently appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 9
May 2012. Throughout the year, he has been, and still is, primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning, business development,
marketing and formulation of overall corporate policies of the Group.
He has over 24 years of experience in the oil, paints and coatings
industry and the trading of chemicals in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 39, is an Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company. He was appointed on 9 May 2012. He has over 11
years' experience in international oil and gas business development.
He was the chief executive officer of two developed oilfield group,
namely Eagle Imran Mining Limited and Laws King Group Limited,
and was responsible for the business development of a range of
comprehensive projects, including oilfields, natural gas and gold
mining in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Jilin Province of
the PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan, Turkmenistan and the United
States of America. He had participated in the exploration and
mining development work of the oilfield in Jilin in 2002, and had
subsequently established Shi Xin Tai De Investment Consulting
Company, Ltd. (¥ REHREFEABRAT) and entered into
a co-development agreement in relation to the Jilin Qian 122
Oilfield (F#EZ122)mMEEE) in 2004. He was responsible for
the operation and was one of the committee members of the joint
management committee of the oilfield.
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Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 56, is an Executive Director. He is
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effective from 1 April
2012 and responsible for the Group’s daily operations, administration
and production management of the Group’s subsidiary in PRC. He
obtained the qualification of LCC — Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from
Hong Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in the field of finance and accounting for over 18 years and
has obtained extensive knowledge therein. He joined the Group in
September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 43, is an Executive Director. He is
a member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Certified Practising Accountant of Australia and
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He also holds a
Master degree in Business Administration and a Master degree in
Professional Accounting and Corporate Governance from the City
University of Hong Kong, a Master degree in Practising Accounting
from the Monash University, Australia and a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of London, United Kingdom. He has
more than 23 years’ experience in accounting and financial field. He
joined the Group as Financial Controller in September 2005. He was
appointed as the Company Secretary for the Company in September
2006.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zaid Latif, aged 40, is a Non-executive Director. He was
appointed on 23 November 2012. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Accounting and Legal Studies from Charles Sturt University,
Australia, and a Diploma of Project Management from Brisbane
North Institute of TAFE, Queensland, Australia. He has extensive
experience in various industries ranging from oil & gas, government,
infrastructure, private equity, property to chartered accounting. Mr.
Latif is a director of Global Equity & Development Group Pty Ltd.,
which is a boutique investment advisory firm that offers strategic,
origination, risk and investment consulting services to government
state owned enterprises, corporate and high net worth individuals.
Clients are based in Australia and Middle East and have exposure to
the sectors of infrastructure, mining, commodity trading (oil & gas,
coal, iron ore etc.), property and information technologies.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified
public accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 37 years of experience in the field
of auditing, accounting as well as financial management. He is the
past president of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.
He is also an independent non-executive director of PYI Corporation
Limited which is a listed company on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul, aged 59, is an Independent Non-
executive Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is the
proprietor of Paul K. C. Chan & Partners, Solicitors & Notaries, and
has been practicing laws in Hong Kong for over 30 years. He obtained
his Juris Doctor Degree from University of Toronto in 1979. He was
admitted to practice as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada
in 1981, and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and in England
and Wales in 1988, and as a barrister and solicitor of the Australian
Capital Territory in 1991, and an advocate and solicitor of Singapore
in 1995. He became a China Appointed Attesting Officer in 1995, a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in 1996, a Notary
Public in Hong Kong in 1997, HKIAC Accredited Mediator in 1999,
Hui Zhou Arbitrator in 2005, a Civil Celebrant of Marriages in 2006,
and Certified Tax Adviser in 2010.
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Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 12
years of experience in accounting, finance and investment banking
specialising in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and
corporate and debt restructuring. He was also an executive director
of publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Currently, he is an
independent non-executive director of NewOcean Energy Holdings
Limited, Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Gold Tat
Group International Limited (formerly known as “Mobile Telecom
Network (Holdings) Limited”), the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as regards their independence
from the Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors is independence of the Company.

Senior Management

Professor Albert Kwong, aged 64, is the Vice Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 July
2008. He is a renowned oil scholar and a seasoned senior petroleum
engineer with worldwide hands-on exploration and production
experience, both onshore and offshore, plus sharp cross-border
business management skills of an international standard. He has
direct exposure to the exploration and exploitation of oil and gas in
North America (covering both the United States and Canada), South
America, Asia (especially China), Australia, North Africa and the
Middle East.
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Professor Kwong earned his Bachelor of Science in Computer Science
from the University of South Carolina in 1974 and Master of Science
in Petroleum Engineering from the University of Texas at Austin in
1977, also later Master of Science in Engineering Management in
Oklahoma, the United States. He had worked as a research engineer
for the Department of Energy, the United States and later as drilling
and operations engineer for Atlantic Richfield Co. He then worked
for Sun Qil (USA) (“Sun”) in its South China Sea offshore drilling
ventures with CNOOC Limited and numerous projects with China
National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC”) and China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”) and subsequently as Sun’s chief
corporate representative in China based in Beijing. He was appointed
as oil consultant working for the United Nations and later oil advisor
to the State of Kuwait in the Middle East. He later worked with Triton
Energy (USA), GE and Conocophillips in its global oil ventures.

Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 33, is the Assistant Financial Controller of
the Group. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She is also a certified Project Management
Professional of Project Management Institute. She holds a Bachelor
degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Prior to joining the Company in December 2011, she had more than
10 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial field in
international accounting firms and in a listed company on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho Chi Hung, Alan, aged 61, is Senior Manager of the Investment
Management Department. He joined the Group in February 2009
and is responsible for all aspects of investment management matters
in relation to the Group's operations in Qigihar oilfield. He has over
13 years of experience in advising independent petroleum firms
operating in the PRC. Mr. Ho graduated with a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Indiana University in 1975 and a Master of Science
degree from the University of Michigan in 1977.
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Ms. Liu Yu Qin, aged 46, is the General Manager and Director
of America Archi Colors Group Limited. She joined the Group in
April 2007 and is responsible for the sales and marketing of paints
products in Northeast China Market. She has a postgraduate degree
from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She has 13 years of
experience in the coating industry in both the PRC and internationally
and over 16 years of experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. Yang Jin Feng, aged 43, is currently the Executive Deputy
General Manager of Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical
Limited (“GalaLi”) of the Group. He engaged in the gasoline and
fuel oil business from 1997 to 2009 in Boluo, Guangdong, during
which, through the cooperation with others, he conducted the
subcontracting operation of Zhuyuan Gas Station and Longhua Gas
Station in Boluo, Guangdong, and acquired and operated Qingtang
Gas Station in Boluo, Guangdong since 1997 before beginning to
engage in the lubricating oil business in 2007. He possesses extensive
business experience. He engaged in the fuel oil trading business in
Shenzhen since 2010 until now and incorporated GalalLi Investment
Development Company Limited (HHEFIELEERBRAF])
(being the name of the registered company of Galali acquired by
the Group) in Shenzhen in the same year. He held the positions as
Legal Representative and Chairman in which the company is mainly
engaged in the fuel oil trading business.

Ms. Lau Wai Wing, Vivian, aged 45, is currently the General Manager
of Galali of the Group. She holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Murdoch University in Perth Australia. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked in the financial and management
fields for over 21 years and held various positions such as financial
controller and marketing for a number of reputable groups,
which include Guangnan Holdings Limited (ER&EBARATF) ,
Guangdong Petrochemical Company Limited (28 H5{LEARATF) ,
Hong Kong Eastern Hill International Limited (BEERIEBRERER
‘A|]) , Taishan PetroChina Sales Company Limited (FRFEI/AH &L
EYt$HEABMR AR and Guangdong Dongchang Group Company
Limited (ERERLEEBRAE]) . She has been engaged in the
imports, re-exports, domestic trading and blending of fuel oil since
2001, and is very familiar with the domestic fuel market.
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Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities

At 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, and any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model code were as follows:

Name of Directors

34

Mr. Poon Sum
EREE

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
EHREE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong
EEREE

Mr. Chan Shu Kin
REZEE

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul
RseEE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung

Notes:

Capacity

ity

Beneficial Owner

5 2N

Founder of Discretionary Trust
2IEEFEHA

Beneficial Owner

5T 2N

Beneficial Owner

5 2N

Beneficial Owner

Beneficial Owner
EEE N
Beneficial Owner
REAA

i

\

EEWS

EENRANEHE S EDR

RIZB-NF=A=+—0 BEZHFRAEK
PI([Ex LB E352EFENELMAT
& RBRETAEBAANF MERMANE
B ARREBEERTETHRABRARBREE
T AREEEE (E 2 R &5 RS GHI15 XV #8) Bk
0~ BRI R EREF EANERNT -

Number of Total %

Nature of Interests Shares held  Equity Derivative Total Interest  of Issued Shares
RS
BHlE FENRAHA RAGAIR s RAESY
Personal Interest (Notes 1 & 4) 153,182,453 400,000,000 897,561,011 19.51%
AR (1 Ra)
Other Interest (Notes 2 & 4) 344,378,558 -
At (Hit2 R4)
Personal Interest (Notes 3 & 4) 16,285 100,000 116,285 0.003%
EAER (HE3R4)
Personal Interest (Note 4) 7,900,000 - 7,900,000 0.172%
AR (i)
Personal Interest (Note 4) 61,500 - 61,500 0.001%
fEARR (Ft4)
Personal Interest (Note 4) 704,000 - 704,000 0.015%
EAER ()
Personal Interest (Note 4) 234,000 - 234,000 0.005%
AR (i)
Bz -

All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, which may be exercised during the period from 1 July 2012 to 27
March 2015 to subscribe for 200,000,000 shares at the exercise price of HK$0.198
per share and interests in warrants of the Company which conferred rights to
subscribe for 200,000,000 shares at an initial subscription price of HK$0.45 per
share (subject to adjustment) exercisable during the period from 3 June 2011 to 2
June 2014.

These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share
capital of Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Time Concord Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family
members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau
Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed
to be interested in 344,378,558 shares, representing approximately 7.49% of
the shares in issue as at 31 March 2014, through his shareholding in Ever Source
Enterprises Limited.
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R {D B Ever Source Enterprises Limited 7% © Ever
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PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 50 ®H@gERIERARAT —T =2 NEFERE



Report of the Directors

EEWS

3, All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the Expired Scheme, which may
be exercised during the period from 13 August 2004 to 12 August 2014 at an
adjusted exercise price of HK$0.251 per share.

4. All interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
are long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2014, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of

Substantial

Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests

IZRRUL/ 4B it BEME

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Trustee Other Interest (Notes 1,2 & 3)
Corporation Limited FHEA Eftigs (W1 2R3)

("BNP Paribas Jersey")

Ground Point Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation Corporate Interest (Notes 1,2 & 3)
("Ground Point") RiEHERS AR (- 2R3)

Red Tiles Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation Corporate Interest (Notes 1,2 &3)
("Red Tiles") REHEEER A (M 2R3)

Guidance Investment Limited

Interest of Controlled Corporation

Corporate Interest (Notes 1,2 & 3)

("Guidance”) R ERER DR (M1 2R3)
Time Concord Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation Corporate Interest (Notes 1,2 &3)
(“Time Concord") RitzEEs DNeEER (W31 203)
Ever Source Enterprises Beneficial owner Corporate Interest (Notes 1,2 & 3)
Limited (“Ever Source”) ERBEEA LR (W 2R3)
Poon Sau Tin Beneficial owner Personal Interest
EEH ERERA ANER
Founder of a Discretionary Trust Other Interest (Notes 1,2 &3)
RRETNRTA Eftigs (i1 2R3)
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Notes:

1. All interests of BNP Paribas Jersey, Ground Point, Red Tiles, Guidance, Time
Concord and Ever Source and the other interest of Mr. Poon Sau Tin are
duplicated.

2. BNP Paribas Jersey is deemed to be interested in the shares in the capacity of a
trustee of the two discretionary trusts as mentioned in paragraph 3 below through
interests of corporations controlled by it as follows:

Name of Controlled Corporation Name of Controlling Shareholder
FERFEEmER ERBRROERE
Ground Point BNP Paribas Jersey
Red Tiles BNP Paribas Jersey
Guidance Ground Point
Time Concord Red Tiles
Ever Source Guidance
Ever Source Time Concord
3. These shares are held by Ever Source. The issued share capital of Ever Source is

beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as to 50% by Guidance,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon
Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, each of Mr. Poon Sum
and Mr. Poon Sau Tin will be deemed to be interested in 344,378,558 shares,
which represent approximately 7.49% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2014,
because each of them is the respective founder of the aforesaid two discretionary
trusts which indirectly own 50% beneficial interest in Ever Source respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the Directors
of the Company, other than a Director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2014 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were approximately 91% and the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer were approximately 69% of the
Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group'’s
five largest suppliers were approximately 88% and the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately 62%
of the Group’s total purchases.

3T
s FiT 5 BNP Paribas Jersey * Ground Point * Red Tiles *
Guidance * Time Concord & Ever Sourcef) % A &R H
SEMEMERER it
2. BNP Paribas Jersey i i LA T B3 EAZ il ) 7= B 2 LA T XX
SRFTEMEZEERENZ AT HRRSHEB RGO
25
Percentage Control
ZERESL
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%
50%
3. %55 R85 B Ever Source A © Ever Source B B TRRAH

—HEREBE LS M kBB REEFR(ZREA
BERTENRENKE) MEHEEGH2AE Time Concord #
B50% * W —MREBELBESIMKY KB —EEE
FEE(REARBREENARESALENOREKE)E
AR A Guidance B BN 50% o B - HRE
RIEHE RESH LA R A Fill EHE %A Ever Source B i
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

To the best of the Director’'s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual
report, none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is a connected transaction.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

Pension Scheme Rules

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to
the MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised
from HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.
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Report of the Directors

EEWS

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
resigned as the joint auditors of the Company with effect from 28
December 2011. Besides pursuant to a board resolution dated 30
December 2011, PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed by the
Board to act as the new auditor of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Poon Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROASIAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 194, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —ZF—/1# = =+—HIFF/Z

2014 2013
—ZT-mEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT BT T
Revenue Wz 5 982,327 991,810
Other income HAbUA - 140
Other losses, net Hfbgsis - F5 6 (53,242) (6,688)
Purchases, processing and related B E - /T RAEBFHX
expenses (955,585) (951,363)
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~T#& - & & EiEF 7 (30,721) (31,271)
Share-based payments VARR S 245 2 308 (22,520) (16,460)
Depreciation, depletion E - FIEREE
and amortisation (22,300) (23,291)
Other operating expenses Hibis &M= (37,186) (59,817)
Operating loss K EE 9 (139,227) (96,940)
Finance income BAEWA 10 658 1,199
Finance costs & A A 10 (1,920) (2,080)
Share of results of associates Vi NGl 23 (759) (12,771)
Loss before income tax (expenses)/  BrFT{5%iA1 (FX) & E5E
credit (141,248) (110,592)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FTisH () 1E5 11 (14,738) 718
Loss for the year KENEE (155,986) (109,874)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT EEAREARNER :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ 2N 14 (151,155) (115,255)
Non-controlling interests eI I R A (4,831) 5,381
(155,986) (109,874)
Loss per share (HK cents) SRR 1A OB1L) 15
Basic HAR (3.29) (2.66)
Diluted e (3.29) (2.66)

F67EE 194 R ZMENDRZSHEAUBRERE

B2t -

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

a2 HEWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —F—/1#F=H=+—HIFF/Z

Loss for the year RERNEE

Other comprehensive (loss)/income: E b2 (E518) Uz

Items that may be reclassified FETé Al e EFT A A2 1R
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE -

Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEEER Z5

translation of foreign operations

Changes in fair value of AIHIEERE 2 A EE
available-for-sale investments
Share of exchange reserve it NG|
of associates e
Total comprehensive loss RERNZHEEEE
for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LA N ATREGEZME (E5E),/
attributable to: Wiz
Owners of the Company RATHAA

Non-controlling interests Il 1

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013
—ZE—-mF =EE—===F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iEEs BT T R T
(155,986) (109,874)
(6,283) (779)
21,382 (773)
23 80 =
15,179 (1,552)
(140,807) (111,426)
(133,042) (116,925)
(7,765) 5,499
(140,807) (111,426)
F67TEE194B 2T BEXEREMEHEE
Bz —& 1D -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR

As at 31 March 2014 R=F—#F=H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-IE —ET—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E BET T BT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - R Rk 17 195,854 220,359
Investment properties &Y 19 24,375 24,888
Goodwill kS 20 16,479 16,457
Other intangible assets Hih R EE 21 238,771 240,499
Interests in associates REEE R E) 2w 23 41,875 42,554
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE ~ e RHEM
other receivables FENRIE 24 28,010 16,255
Other financial assets HEther&EE 25 74,314 57,102
619,678 618,114
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 58 26 12,671 5,670
Trade receivables B 5 RGIE 27 113,538 37,408
Prepayments, deposits and BRARE - Zek
other receivables H fth FE U RIE 24 47,935 112,816
Derivative financial assets METREE 28 746 181
Other financial assets HEther&EE 25 5,165 145
Tax recoverable ALY B FE IR 557 311
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEERR 29 134,665 110,499
315,277 267,030
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade payables 2 5 EMNFRIE 30 128,536 64,076
Accruals and other payables & ST FRIE R EAth A RRIE 31 52,863 42,488
Derivative financial liabilities ESBEE 28 38,066 8,997
Bank borrowings RITIEE 32 48,975 37,488
268,440 153,049
Net current assets REEEFE 46,837 113,981
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREB AR 666,515 732,095
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR AR

As at 31 March 2014 R=F—pF=H=+—H

Capital and reserves R R @
Share capital [N
Reserves G

Equity attributable to owners AAREEAEMG 2R
of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A
Total equity DB
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEXERIBEE
Bonds &%

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 194 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Poon Sum
BER
Director

EZ

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Note
B aE

33

36
37

2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
46,006 46,006
531,803 639,722
577,809 685,728
28,005 37,045
605,814 722,773
8,125 9,322
52,576 =
60,701 9,322
666,515 732,095

FSTER 1M AMBZGEEUBRAERESS
MREZE—FERA - TBIERRETZE  th
THEERERERZ

Poon Wai Kong
R
Director

EF

F67 AR 194 AZMENDRZEGA M B MERE

Bz -
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

As at 31 March 2014 R=F—p#F=HA=+—H

FRBEE

Y% - BE KaktE

NGl VNI £

BNFOR - e R EAM
e WK IA

RBEE

FANFIR - RE R EA
U IR

JFE W Bt /B8 A B 3R IR

RE RIRTTHES

REBEE

FEETRIA B EL (L (5 5RIR

FETHT A B RIA

REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREEE

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Bonds

The financial statements on pages 57 to 194 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2014 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Poon Sum

B

Director

EF

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

RAK
A
G

AT

FERBAE
&%
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2013

—ZT—=F

Note HK$'000
FfaE BT
17 2,662
22 429,401
24 10,300
442,363

24 40,581
22 103,995
29 33,225
177,801

31 4,445
22 2,968
7,413

170,388

612,751

33 46,006
34 566,745
612,751

37 _
612,751

BEERREE

Poon Wai Kong
R
Director

EF

F67 AR 194 BZMENRZSEE

B2 —&btn °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 April 2012

Comprehensive income
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign
operations
Change in fair value of available-
for-sale investments

Total other comprehensive
(loss)/income

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Transactions with owners

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Issue of new shares for acquisition
of subsidaries (Note 38)

Placement of new shares

Exercise of share options

Lapse of share options

Total transactions with owners

At 31 March 2013

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14
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SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —F—/1#F=H=+—HIFF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG PN
Share-
based Non-
Share Share  payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve Teserves reserve [osses Total interests equity
s JEERlfE s
Ra RGRE  FERE  EbBE  EiRE  ZiEE g R 2%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Aetr  ABtr  #%Tr BT BT BT BT Bt BT
(Note)
(Bt
RZF-Z%¥MA-A 41299 1,751,626 46,897 (219,063) 39,039 (964,184) 695,614 2310 697,984
2EYE
RENER = = = = - (115255  (115255) 5381 (109,874)
R 2 (F8) /i
AEBIFBEED
EXZR
- - - - (897) - (897) 118 (179)
AHHERE I ATE
23 - - - (113) - - (1m3) - (173)
Hb2E (58)/ hE
] = - - (113) (897) - (1,670 118 (1,552)
RERZE (F8)/
hseE - - - (113) (897) (115255  (116,925) 5499 (111,426)
HEBAZRE
BRI RAEEIR
XITZ3E - - 32,940 - - - 32,940 - 32,940
SUEHB AR
HRI (Mt 38) 1573 24,032 - - - - 25,605 29176 54,781
RENRA 3,125 45,191 - - - - 48316 - 48316
i i 9 209 (40) - - - 178 - 178
BIRELR = = 2514 = = 2514 - - -
HEENIRFRE 4,707 69,432 30,386 - - 2514 107,039 29176 136,215
RZB-Z%¥=fA=+-R 46,006 1,821,058 77283 (219,836) 38,142 (1,076,925 685,728 37045 72,773
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Consolidated Statement of Changesin Equ'ity“

hERERESBWR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —ZF—/1# = =+—HIFF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALTREARLE
Share- Retained
based eamings/ Non-
Share Share  payment Other  Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
HRB% 2 REER AR s
ke RABE  FERE  RtEE  EXRE  (BHER) g i g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BT BETn BETn BETn B¥Tn BETn BETn BETn BETn
(Note)
(&)
At 1 April 2013 RZF-=£MA-A 46,006 1,821,058 77,283 (219,836) 38,142 (1,076,925 685,728 37,045 122,713
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - (151155 (151155 (4831)  (155986)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income E 27 (&) /i
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEEINEHELH
translation of foreign operations ~ EXEE - - - - (3,349) - (3,349) (2,934) (6,283)
Change in fair value of AHEREZ ATE
available-for-sale investments 23 - - - 21,382 - - 21,382 - 21,382
Share of exchange reserve N
of associates EX - - - - 80 - 80 - 80
Total other comprehensive Hi2E (58) i
(loss)/income ag - - - 21,382 (3,269) - 18,113 (2,934) 15,179
Total comprehensive (loss)/income A£A2 (FE)/
for the year W - - - 21,382 (3269)  (151,155)  (133,042) (7,765)  (140,807)
Transactions with owners REEAZRE
Lapse of share options BIRERN - - (20,048) - - 20,048 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled DARREENRR
share-based payments 2B - - 20,040 - - 20,040 - 20,040
Disposal of an available-forsale ~ HE—EAEHERE
investment - - - (367) - - (367) - (367)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(c))  HiEMBA] (Fz39(c) - - - - - - - (55) (55)
Set-off against accumulated EHREEE (3 34)
losses (Note 34) - (1,331,59) - - - 1331,59% - - -
Dividend paid to non-controling B fiFERIERR 2
interests RE - - - - - - - (1,220) (1,220)
Capital contributions from RETERFZHE
substantial shareholders (Note 1)~ (Bi&11) - - - 5,450 - - 5,450 - 5,450
Total transactions with owners ~ EEBAZRHEE - (1,331,5%) 8) 5,083 - 1,351,644 25123 (1275 23,848
At 31 March 2014 RZB-BE=A=1-A 46,006 489,462 77275 (1933N) 34,873 123,564 577,809 28,005 605,814
Note: P 5

HinEEEZERARHBARREEH 2 X5 (ZERH LT
GEBRERZHMBR R Z 2 5#) BN B RIS B ETKE
ol E IR b M B R [ 2 2 58 - KRB B 221,862,000 7T (=
T—=4F : {B35%221,862,0007T) ° HEE N EEEERE
HE - RESEEHE  SOHRBRORERE - DN RERBYE
5,450,000 (=T —=4: &) - EKRHE¥19,557,000(=F
— =4 : BHHE%1,458,0007T ) * AR ¥ 3,248,000 T (= F
— =4 : #ERRANE 3,248,000 7T ) BRI 236,000 T (=T —=
F RS 236,0007T) ©

Other reserves mainly represents the difference of approximately a debit of
HK$221,862,000 (2013: a debit of HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or
received from transactions related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries without
the loss of control and the non-controlling interests being acquired or disposed of. Other
reserves also comprise capital contributions from substantial shareholders, investment
valuation reserve, merger reserve and statutory reserve of approximately a credit of
HK$5,450,000 (2013: Nil), a credit of HK$19,557,000 (2013: a debit of HK$1,458,000),
a credit of HK$3,248,000 (2013: a credit of HK$3,248,000) and a credit of HK$236,000
(2013: a credit of HK$236,000), respectively.

F67BEF 194 A MR RZSEE VBRE
Bz &M -

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AMERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —F—/1#F=H=+—HIFF/Z

Cash flows from operating
activities
Loss before income tax
(expenses)/credit
Adjustments for:
Finance income
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Depreciation, depletion and
amortisation
Recognition/(reversal) of
impairment losses of trade
receivables
Recognition of impairment losses
of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Recognition of impairment losses
of investment properties and
prepaid land leased payments

Recognition of impairment losses of

property, plant and equipment
Recognition of impairment loss of
an available-for-sale investment
Discount on acquisition
(Gains)/losses on disposals of
subsidiaries/business, net
Losses/(gains) on disposals of
property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment
written off
Gain on disposal of an available-
for-sale investment
Losses from changes in fair value
of derivative financial
instruments
Losses from changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments
Wavier of other payables, net
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
carried forward
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2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(141,248) (110,592)
(658) (1,199)
1,920 2,080
759 12,771
22,300 23,291
1,129 (4,368)
31,048 9,590
- 8,524
- 8,617
- 3,315
- (1,956)
(5,374) 6,214
743 (7,550)
114 =
(367) =
28,785 3,000
36 654
- (16,258)
22,520 16,460
(38,293) (47,407)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEBHTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2 —ZF—/1# = =+—HIFF/Z

2014 2013
—ZT-mEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B e BT BT T
Operating cash flows before R EEESF A2
movements in working capital KEREME
brought foward (38,293) (47,407)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM), SR (6,984) 2,086
(Increase)/decrease in trade S rElaRiE (gm),
receivables (77,232) 18,268
Decrease in prepayments, TERTRIE ~ e RHEM
deposits and other receivables FEWFRIE R 5,019 3,109
(Increase)/decrease in held-for- FHEEERIRE (380),
trading investments (53) 2,189
(Decrease)/increase in derivative TEemaECRY),/
financial liabilities, net N - JFER (281) 666
Increase in trade payables B 5 I FRIAE N 64,440 27,079
Increase in accruals and other FESHRRIE [k E At FE 1~ 5k 1E
payables N 9,522 16,063
Cash (used in)/generated from e (),
operations sz B e (43,862) 22,053
Purchase of tax reserve EERNS ([R5 ])
certificates (“TRC") (154) (105)
Hong Kong profits tax refund BANEGBRR 123 =
Net cash (used in)/generated TR (FTA)Figz
from operating activities REFH (43,893) 21,948
Cash flows from investing REREZBHRESTE
activities
Settlement of consideration payables 45 R HK(E - (21,238)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal HE&EKB AR, EKES
of subsidiaries/business ZBERMAFEE 39 5,084 6,309
Proceeds from disposal of an HE—ErHEEREZ
available-for-sale investment FTiSIE 25 4,170 =
Purchase of property, plant and EEMZE  BE K&
equipment (2,299) (10,054)
Purchase of unlisted debt securities B&pEEREENIE LT
from financial institutions BEES 25 (5,003) =
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME « ME &EE
plant and equipment FT{S I8 1,357 10,136
Interest received 2 WF & 658 1,199
Increase in restricted bank deposits B iEIRERTIF L AN (30,033) =
Net cash used in investing REFEHFIAREFE
activities (26,066) (13,648)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z ==

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from exercise of share
options

Proceeds from placement of
new shares

Net proceeds from issuance of
non-listed warrants

Net proceeds from issuance
of bonds

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The notes on pages 67 to 194 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Note
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33(a)

33(b)

2013
—e =&
HK$'000
BT

178

48,316

19,991
(36,329)
(2,080)

77,505

(5,382)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GNERE R e

General information

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Suite 3601,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the exploitation
and sale of crude oil, sale of chemical products, provision
of exploration drilling and painting services, trading of
commodities and property investment.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved by the
Board of Directors on 20 June 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

R geRIERER AR ([ARQF ) AR
SERETMRZZERARE - EHIRHDESE
BEERXZMABRAR (B £ e
RATE 2 MR & B S B 2
#E5 Bll & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1- 1111,
Cayman Islands & 2574 fLEESS D IR /G PS4
L AE 6 FE3601 = °

ARBEEXEBRIREZER - ENE A A
ZEBXBRURNHERH  HE(LT
Em - REBREF HRRYE  BaE
HRMERE -

o~

BREERIN  ZEREPBRRIAEE
(MB¥ 27 - ZREGEYBHRREN
T-OEAA-+HESEEERE -

£
ST
.

ST

TESTEERME

ARV BHRERMER 2 T E &5
BEREINAT - REAEAI - ZFERE
RIEZIFENCERER -
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ET e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)

(continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (a) wEEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
certain available-for-sale financial investments, held-for-
trading investments and derivative financial assets and
liabilities, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

RABREMBRR (GE KM )
ZIEEMBRRVRBEEES A
BRM 2 BB BIREER ([FEH
THRELER ) MR - &R M TEHmE
ERRELRAERE  WHETH
HEELRIRE  FHEEENRER
EEMEERARGEATFEA
AR fEHHERT

MBI E BB IERE LR 2 MR
FARAETER MR © 1IN
ERERNERARESERARET
IVRIELHIET - % R BT AR 5
5 BIS SO R R e MR
BRZ B R fhiat 2 SIS HBE R
40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRNE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)

(continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b)

disclosures

() New standards, revisions and amendments
to existing standards and interpretation
effective for annual periods beginning on 1

April 2013:
Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
(Revised) on items of other comprehensive

income
Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time adoption of HKFRS -
Government loans
Amendment to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure -
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Transition guidance

11and 12
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee benefits
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and

joint ventures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping cost in the production phase

of a surface mine

The adoption of the new standards, revisions
and amendments to existing standards and
interpretation did not have any material impact
on the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ET e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)

(continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBRREBERZEH @

disclosures (continued)

(i) New standards, revisions and amendments (i) EEAEMRERRERRER
to existing standards and interpretation have Bz iER - REER KRR
been issued but are not effective and have not B2 IERT RIBFT 2

been early adopted

Amendments to HKAS 16 and 38 Clarification of acceptance methods of

BB ST ERE 165 K&
F 38 ZIBF] A

Amendment to HKAS 19
ERGRTERE 195 2B R

Amendment to HKAS 32

BB ETERIE 32 R 2 BRI A

Amendment to HKAS 36

BB GRTERIE 36 5% 2RI A

Amendment to HKAS 39

BB EFTERIE 395k 2 BRI A

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and 9

EBUBRELANE TR K
ELPACTIRN

depreciation and amortisation

AIRR 2 E RS A 2BE

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions
FERMGE - BEMHK

Financial Instruments: Presentation-Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

SRTH: 27 -KiFHeREERSREE

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

FFTREBE < FIRE S FEKE

Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement — novation of derivatives
SHTA: BRRFEITETIR
2 (B

Disclosures: Mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 and transitional

disclosures
BEE - BSEHSERE AR 9 5% #Y 58 il
AR A HA N R

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

AT B sk 2 1%
748 2 G 2 B AR Rk

1 January 2016

—E-XRF—-H—H
1 July 2014
—ZE-MFE+HA—H

1 January 2014

—T—mFE—A—H

1 January 2014

—ZT—lHFE—HF—H

1 January 2014

—T—mFE—A—H

1 January 2015

—ZT—h¥—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

e B HRRNE

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

FESTTEEREE (&)

(b) BFBEERREBERZ2E @

(i) New standards, revisions and amendments (i) EEAEMRERRERRER

to existing standards and interpretation have
been issued but are not effective and have not

been early adopted (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 9

BB UBIMELELE 95K 2 EFTA

Amendments to HKFRS
10, 12 and HKAS 27
BRI RELRERZE 1095 -
F 12 RBBEER

27 R 2 IEFT A

Amendment to HKFRS 11

EBU R DL 11 52 BEA

HKFRS 9
B MBI ELERE 95K

HKFRS 14
BB UBIMELERE 1458

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
H5 (BB EREREBZES)
—REE21%

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 /1

Rz ER BEEARE
BT RIEFT A ()

Hedge accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39

@t MEBMEREERIE 95K
BEMBREENE 7R EEESR
R 3957 2 EFT A

Investment entities

AR

Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations
WEBHE S 2B S 2 BT B IR

Financial instruments

SRTE

Regulatory deferred accounts
EEIRIEAR B

Levies

=00

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

RUATT B #ik 2 & Fa
Z FE AR AR
(Note)

(F3E)

1 January 2014

—ZT—HmHE—H—H

1 January 2016

—ZET—RF—H—H

(Note)
GES

1 January 2016
A s =

1 January 2014
—ZT—NME—-A—H
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ET e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(ii)

New standards, revisions and amendments
to existing standards and interpretation have
been issued but are not effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB IS RS ER 2 BRI A

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB RELER ZERTA —E——F%

Note: The Group intends to adopt this new standard when the
effective date is determined.

The Group is assessing the impact of these
amendments, standards and interpretation and
will apply them once they are effective.

(c¢) Subsidiaries

0]

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

FESTHERME (@)

REI::

(b) BFBERREBERZ2E @

(ii)

Annual improvements 2010 — 2012 cycle

—ETFEE T _FRBFENRE

Annual improvements 2011 - 2013 cycle

=FIRHFENE

EEAEMRERREARRER
Rz ER BEEARE
B2 IERT RISET 2 ()

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
PRUAT B sk 2 &R
ZFERBAER

1 July 2014
—mE+A—A

1 July 2014
—ZT-NFE+LA—H

BfeE :  AREERHEE A A R
LR o

A& E IEFT A% % §§ AN E
AlRREsE  WHFER
B ONCAFER ©

() HEBARA

0]

=a

R 2 ) T = [ e A R
MWER(BREEEIEER) -5
AEER2EERERMEH
O HAERRRZFERN -
LERHEERERNENY
2 EO - AEARELZ
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EHEEEEAEE 2 BER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GNERE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in consolidated income
statement.

2 TEESTHTBEREE @)

(c) KEBAT @)

(i) #He@m
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B 2 B] B Rl & 7 R P
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N ERKEE R 2 AT
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12 FE 78 fll 1 8 2 T A 4
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R U EE 75 2 I 3E
PRF RS o

Yo B AR A P AN I E A iy
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Consolidation (continued)

(a)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in consolidated
income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions-that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in consolidated
income statement. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

=E um
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(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.
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The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of results of associates’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company that
makes strategic decisions.

(@

(i)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The Company’s functional
currency is United States dollars (“US$"”) and
since the Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Board of
Directors considered that it is more appropriate
to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the Company'’s
presentation currency in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GNERE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “Other losses, net”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in consolidated income statement,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
consolidated income statement as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ET e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)

(continued)
(f) Foreign currency translation (continued) (f) e E E)

(iii) Group companies (iii) HFEAF

The results and financial position of all the Group e BB E 25| ¥R 2
entities (none of which has the currency of a E5EER ( BEROERSE
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional BREER 2 EH) 2 ¥E
currency different from the presentation currency RN IAIRAT HEBRE
are translated into the presentation currency as REINEE

follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of (@) MREMBHRAKREYZ

financial position presented are translated

AEABBEHUZTE

at the closing rate at the date of that RS B HR 2 YT e &
consolidated statement of financial position; ]

(b) income and expenses for each income (b) BHRERZBARE
statement are translated at average HIgR T HERGE -
exchange rates (unless this average is not a MWz FHELIER S
reasonable approximation of the cumulative HBTEXRAGHEZ
effect of the rates prevailing on the ABIRAE - AIIA KR
transaction dates, in which case income and PR 5E A 2 ERHK
expenses are translated at the rate on the CS3
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are (0 FMBEXEZEXREZRET)

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

POELA 2 R R FERR

R EINERMESL 2 HE
RAFEFABDERZEINE
BzEERAGRIE  WRW
MERME - PIEAZERE
BN E A 2 U TR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GNERE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)
(continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (continued) (f) e E E)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 81

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to consolidated income statement.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly plant
and machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment, motor
vehicles, oil properties (Note 2(h)) and construction in
progress, is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

(9)

(iv) HEBIER
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBERME &)
(continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (9) % - BMERRE @
Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated FOME ERINZ T ER T 5 h5HRIfE
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to RERUBERETE - HKAEH
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as ZHFIEAEE :
follows:

Plant and machinery 5-11 years R B 2 5-114
Furniture, fixture 3-11 years RA - EKE 3-11%

and equipment HAZR
Motor Vehicles 4-8 years T 4 -84
No depreciation is provided for construction in progress CEIBRETIRABAGEAITE
until they are completed and ready for use. FTIRMTE o
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, REREARE SR EERRER
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting ROEREE - WEEZER MMED
period. TR o
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately HEERBESNE AT E S
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount B - BN Z & E 2 BRI ERUR 2 H
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note AT Bl 558 (PRFaE 2(1)
2(1)).
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by s R B 18 0B B L ERFT 1S 308
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount HREEEE - WS W mR A
and are recognised within “Other losses, net” in the R [ HMEE  FE] -

consolidated income statement.
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Exploration and evaluation

Oil exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the “successful efforts”
method of accounting. Costs are accumulated on
a field-by-field basis. Geological and geophysical
costs are expensed as incurred. Costs directly
associated with an exploration well, and
exploration and property leasehold acquisition
costs, are capitalised until the determination
of reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these
costs are charged to expense.

Capitalisation is made within property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets according to the
nature of the expenditure.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration
and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
and transferred to development tangible and
intangible assets. No depreciation and/or
amortisation is charged during the exploration and
evaluation phase.

Development assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation
or completion of infrastructure facilities such
as platforms, pipelines and the drilling of
commercially proven development wells, is
capitalised within property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets according to nature.
When development is completed on a specific
field, it is transferred to oil properties or intangible
assets. No depreciation and/or amortisation is
charged during the development phase.

(ii)
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(iii)

(iv)
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Oil properties

Qil properties are aggregated exploration and
evaluation tangible assets, and development
expenditures associated with the production of
proved reserves.

Depreciation/amortisation

QOil properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses.
The successful efforts method of accounting is
used for oil properties. Under this method, all costs
for development wells, support equipment and
facilities, and acquired proven mineral interests in
oil properties are capitalised. Proven oil reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil which
geological and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to the recoverable in
future years from known reservoirs under existing
economic and operating conditions, i.e., prices and
costs as of the date the estimate is made. Prices
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of
capitalised costs of oil properties is calculated on
the unit-of-production basis over the total proven
and probable reserves of the relevant area. The
unit-of-production rate for depletion, depreciation
and amortisation of oil properties takes into
account the expenditure incurred to date, together
with projected future development expenditure
and the volume of oil produced in the current year.

(iii)

(iv)
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(v)

(vi)
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Impairment - exploration and evaluation
assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for
impairment when reclassified to development
assets, or whenever facts and circumstances
indicate impairment. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the
exploration and evaluation assets’ carrying amount
exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the exploration and
evaluation assets’ fair value less costs to sell and
their value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, the exploration and evaluation assets
subject to testing are grouped with existing cash-
generating units of production fields that are
located in the same geographical region.

Impairment - development assets and oil
properties

Development assets and oil properties are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-
in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows.

(v)

(vi)
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

()

()

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments representing prepaid land
costs are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Prepaid land lease payments are amortised to the
consolidated income statement over the term of relevant
land leases.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and building, are properties held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that
is not occupied by the Group. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is
met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over the
shorter of the term of the lease and 50 years, using the
straight-line method.

(
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R ETE Y

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets

0]

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates represents the excess of
consideration transferred over the Group's interest
in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-
in-use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(k)
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at
historical cost and have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using unit-of-
production method. The units of exploitation
rights are reviewed annually in accordance with
the production plans of the Group and the proved
and probable reserves of the crude oil.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method of
ten years over the expected life of the customer
relationship.
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-for-trading investments,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

(@) Held-for-trading investments

Held-for-trading investments are financial
assets held-for-trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categories as
held-for-trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

NN ETE Y

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

0]

Classification (continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise “Trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables” (Notes 2(q)), and “Cash
and bank balances” (Note 2(r)) in the
consolidated and company statement of
financial position.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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(ii) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Held-for-trading investments are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
investments and financial assets held-for-trading
investments are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the held-for-trading investments are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “Other losses, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from held-for-trading
investments is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to received payments is

established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as “Other

losses, net”.
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(ii)
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(ii) Recognition and measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

(ii)

(iii)
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Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Any subsequent events or evidence proved
that the impaired amount cannot be recoverable, it was
written off and derecognised from the consolidated and
company statement of financial position.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(o)

(p)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Assets and
liabilities are classified as current if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the derivatives are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “Other losses, net” in the period in
which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R ETE Y

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(g) Trade receivables, deposits and other

(r)

(s)

receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection/realisation of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, restricted bank deposits and bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management and often fluctuate from
being positive to overdrawn. In the consolidated and
company statement of financial position, bank overdrafts
are shown within bank borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Trade payables, accruals and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense
and included in finance costs in consolidated income
statement in the year in which they are incurred.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position
date in the countries where the Group and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(w) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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(ii)

(iii)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only where
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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The Group maintains a number of defined contribution
plans in the countries in which it operates, the assets
of the retirement benefit are generally held in separate
trustees-administered funds. The retirement plans are

generally funded by payments from employees and by

the Group.

(@

(i)

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees or
suppliers as consideration for equity instruments
(options or warrants) of the Group. The fair value
of the employees or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or warrants granted:

3 including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options or warrants that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
or suppliers may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair
value is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.
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(ii)
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Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
or warrants that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options or warrants are exercised,
the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the Company’s financial statements.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession
arrangement to maintain or restore the infrastructure
before it is handed over to the granter, are measured
at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sale of crude oil, commodities and
chemical products is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.
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When the outcome of a service contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price service
contract is recognised on the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the value of work
carried out during the period. When the outcome of a
service contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

i ARTE & K2 A& REES A SEfdET - A
BEEBRBANZKRETIRETAD
LETEMER - L2 EHNE TR T
ZEEETHE - WRBAHZER
EORRA S b - Bl E e AR BElk
Bl 2 FIEE & KIRARIR T IARER ©
BRI B E & R AR A
e

fid & KA ANARREA Al BE BB & A MR a
B BHNERTEIRER S
e

FEWMAKAERFEERER - B8
R FEMGRTE IR R (B - $%.@
HEREEREE AT OS5 - BT
A7 REBRFIRITIR 2 5 RRKRE
mE - WEBBITHRGTELERER
BUA - BIREE R EKRIE 2 F
BUIALA RERFRMHER o

=K HSZHXTAIEZ@W B MRS - R
BZ BB T IARER -

B E A MR AR e K O s R
HEANEE - 9RARKEHE -
RIBEL2HE T ROFOR (H5 7l
Afa TEVEM R REERANE
BORTEAR B IR R P HIR -

PHRFRERERAR T = WFFERSE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

e B mRNE

Financial risk management 3

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The
financial instruments held by the Group as at 31 March
2014 and 2013 are set out as follows:

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and
bank balances)

Held-for-trading investments
Available-for-sale investments

Derivative financial assets

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial liabilities
Bank borrowings
Bonds
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

3 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Management monitors and manages the financial risk
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

The Group conducts its treasury functions and
maintains certain cash and bank balances, bank
borrowings and bonds in foreign currencies,
hence is exposed to foreign currency risk. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movements of the foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateménts

(i)

e B mRNE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 BIBEREE @
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMHEREREZE@)
Market risk (continued) (i) THERE@
Foreign currency risk management (continued) SIMNE RS EEE (1)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REBINES|ENEE S E
currency denominated monetary assets and RE¥EENRE B BNERE
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as BIAF :
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF  —T-=fF —B-NF —F =F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
HK$ ot 199,832 187,212 119,652 44,854
Us$ =TT 75,034 20,260 140,485 30,682
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE (TAR®] ) 95,760 65,792 54,897 69,510
Others Hih 7,347 5,313 3,555 589
Foreign currency sensitivity SMEGIRE

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s loss in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

TRETEEARBEHEX
R Fa e B R B R O & 22

EVBEAIEEE
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e B mERNE

3 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity (continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive/(negative) number below indicates a
decrease/(increase) in post-tax loss (2013: same)
where RMB, HK$ and other currencies (2013:
same) strengthen against the relevant functional
currency of the Group entities, that is US$. For a
5% (2013: 5%) weakening of RMB, HK$ and other
currencies against the relevant functional currency
of the Group entities, that is US$, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss.

HK$ ok
RMB AR
Others EAth

3 HE

o B I (48)

(a) HBEREZE @

(0]

i RS (@)
SNEHESE ()
FRESTEREREEHI
BEIEEBIER - WRFERIE
ERA5% (= —=F : 5%)
2 mMALEEBELE - T
EA/(B)EETR  MARKE -
BEREMEB(ZZ—=
F:MHRE) REERNEE B
WINRE B TER L7 - Al
BREiREREERD,(380)
ZE—=F R c WAR
B AR R H AR H AR AR
SEEBNNEEEETES
5% (ZZE—=4F : 5%)
RlIBR TR 12 B 18 1 HH 3R S E 1B 48
REFE -
2014 2013
—E-mF —EE—=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
4,009 7,118
2,043 (186)
190 236
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Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bonds (Note 37). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings and derivative financial liabilities.

The Group’s cash flow interest risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the
Group’s HK$ denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank and other borrowings. The analysis is
prepared assuming the bank and other borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point (2013: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
for variable-rate bank borrowings is used for
interest rate sensitivity analysis and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

(1) Cash flow interest rate risk

In order to keep borrowings at fixed rate
and to minimise the cash flow interest rate
risk, the Group enters into floating to fixed
interest rate swaps to manage the cash
flow interest rate risk exposure associated
with certain amount of borrowings that
carry interests at floating rate totalling
HK$48,975,000 (2013: HK$37,488,000).

(0]

5 E K (@)
FIEE f & FE

AEBEEHFRAERESFZA
FEMEER (HFE37) - &%
B IR E S A BIRITAERR R
RITEBEERTEEREBEZR
2imE M ERRE

AEENESREN AR E
EERNREAEE BT
BEEEMEENTBRITRZE
HE(EBRITAERFE K
) o

FF G E T

VAT B 8RR E 0 A B AR IRt 2R
ﬁ&ﬁ@fﬁféfﬂ’ﬁ‘]%}—tﬁﬁ?r

DT TIRR IR E BARAS
%h“ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%hﬁé%&
EFEERDARTA o MR
BT RiE BRITIERE £
THek TRk SOEEE (T —=
F SOfEER)FE - IRK
EEEEN R AR
Z A

(1)  HwEBF|FER

S T BB EEFREE
SRR BRERERS
%%JTHﬁ F REE
T B EKRE LR

LXEI@&%%$}R/¥
_\a#%\z%%zﬁ HE K
48,975,000 (=& —=
£ #1#537,488,000 7T )
MNEEREBNESRE
=R -
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HBIREREE @
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMHEREREZE@)
(i) Market risk (continued) (i) HiE R (@)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (continued) T BB T (42)
(1) Cash flow interest rate risk (continued) (1) HELREFIEERE &)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points i ¥ & AT B 50
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and BEEZ(ZZT—=%F:
all other variables were held constant, the S0 fEE2h) M T H A

Group's pre-tax loss derived from variable-
rate borrowings for the year ended 31
March 2014 would increase/decrease by
HK$245,000 (2013: HK$187,000).

There is no material cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s bonds were issued at fixed rates
and expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. As at 31 March 2014, the Group's
bonds of HK$52,576,000 (2013: Nil) were
carried at fixed rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax loss derived from fixed-rate
bonds for the year ended 31 March 2014
would decrease/increase by HK$1,458,000
(2013: Nil) as a result of decrease/increase in
fair value of fixed rate bonds.

BERFTE  AIRE
BEHEZ—_ZT—NF=A
=+—HRIEFEEEH
T R & FREE £ OB AT &S
B MRS
245,000t( = & — =
£ K 187,0007T) ©

AEBEREAMRITE
BB ABREIME K
[\

RFEFF R

AEBREHFDEEE
BT BEASE
EAZQAFEMNER
B M-_T—MNFE=A
=t+—B AEEZB
# 52,576,000 JT{&E F1)
REEMNEFE(ZZ
—=F &)

WA R EGE EFH T
BKSOEER(ZZ—=
G 50fEER) RFTA
Hh ol & FH X RFF
g AAREBRBE=
T-mE=ZA=+—8
LEFEFEREELES
WRBRAEEERE
BEHATERD, 18
IR 2> 3 0
1,458,000 (=& —=
F ) o
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R ETE Y

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HBIREREE @
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMHEREREZE@)
(i) Market risk (continued) (i) ™WHHERR®
Other price risk BB 152z

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and
unquoted equity securities. Decisions to buy or
sell listed equity securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual
securities compared to index of relevant stock
markets and other industry indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date. If the prices
of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2013: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2014
would decrease/increase by HK$16,000 (2013:
HK$15,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the
Group’s investments in unquoted equity securities
which are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period.

AEBBEBERER LMRA
78 75 I FF b i BB R 2 1
BERERER - EE EmARA
BHAVRE T RIES HERRE
PlFEF R RN ERBERET S
T HADFT R IR L BIRAEH o

LA B BURRE D AT B AR B 3R
HEHEORAEERRETE o
HWEEBHMBRATENERS
KEFTEI10% (ZFE—=
F:10%)  BIAREERBEZ
—E-NE=A=+—HIHF
ENBRBAEBEEESEFER
B IR B B A (E 2 8w
A/ INE16,000T (—F
—=% : &% 15,0007T) °

RN AER BN IF EWARAE 5
ZRERBBREHRZAKAE
AR AT 3851 2 O (B e 1R SR AT
B At E2INGRED
#r o
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NN ETE Y

3 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks or financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned
banks in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

3 B¥ERER@E)

(a) HBEREZE @

(ii)

EERR

N=F-mE=A=+-8
8RS F R RTE
BHAREREYBHBEHE
EEBAEHRARTARAM
BRARAILEREERHS
BAEREEMESE -

RTEERKEERR A&
EEREEEE—EEREE
EEEERE  FEHEEE
ESERARFF » FERIRENERAETT
AN E 2 B EMETE o oD
AEERREDREREEHE
HERE 2 E% A KRE S
B OmARREZKROMNSHE
T R AEBERE - BLL
5 ARREEARAKED
EERREBERE -

RBEETEREERNEER
Rk REREFHAESH
BB EETRAEEL TREER
ABIRRITR G BB T 2
ARFEFE (T EE ) BEAR
e
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(iii)
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Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 64 %
(2013: 39%) and 98% (2013: 76%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors respectively
within the commodity trading, chemical products
and service contract segments (2013: the
commodity trading, chemical products and service
contract segments). The Group has assessed the
credit worthiness of these customers and all of
these customers have good historical repayment
records and of low default rate. In this regard, the
directors considered that the credit risk is low. The
Group also has concentration of geographical risk
as approximately 76% (2013: 68%) of the Group's
revenue was generated from the customers from
the Malaysia.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank
balances deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants and timely negotiates with the
lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31
March 2014, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and short-term bank loan facilities of
HK$9,025,000 (2013: HK$15,259,000).

(ii)

(iii)

EERk @

AEEEHEREERR - T
MR E 5 R IB B 64%
(ZF2— =% :39%) %98%
(ZZ2—=% :76%) DRIk B
HRES L IEREREAS
HNEBIHB(ZZT—=F:18
MBS tIERERBEYD
B0 ) AR ERAER
ARBEAREBA - KEBEBF
HZERFHERAKE @ Mz
ERFBRAHERITMNER:
8 ERERRE - FAit - EEF
REEERRE TS > ARA
EEBHT6% (T —=F:
68%) Kz ¥9R B 5 2K Fa 20
BE MU B i R R
BEF o

RBES R

R EEEREE

REBRSE S ARE - KNE
MERMGERHEEERSRE
NRAKEN 2 BREES R
RERSRERDZENRES
FERITHEEKT - EEEER
RITREAME S BB R AR
BB R - WENERE
EfAIE R Rz 155 H R B
Ko b BRE R AETTRERY ©

AEEFBRTREMEER
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(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are at floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from the
weighted average interest rates by reference to the
HIBOR of the Group’s variable-rate borrowings at
the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the
Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments, except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments, since
the settlement of which would be satisfied by the
issue of new ordinary shares and does not involve
any cash outflows. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual net
cash outflows on derivative instruments (except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative
financial instruments) that settle on a net basis.
When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount
disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the
weighted average interest rate by reference to
HIBOR of the Group's variable-rate borrowings and
the terms stipulated in the contract of derivative
financial instruments existing at the end of the
reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the
Group's derivative financial instruments (except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative
financial instruments) are prepared based on
the contractual maturities as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

(iii)
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Notes t6 the Consolidated Firidncial Statements.

e MR R A T

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HRERERE @)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMHEREREZE@)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REBESRRE (F)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) B E D RFIEREEZ (2
Weighted Total
average undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate  Within 1year ~ 1-2years  2-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
AiRRS

nEFIHE MER 125 258 SENE  RESE FaE
% HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT EBTmn ARTn ERTR ERTR ERn

As at 31 March 2014 R-%-mE
=p=1-8
Trade payables BHRNTE 128,536 - - - 128,536 128,536
Other payables At 50,436 - - - 50,436 50,436
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) F11a8 (W3t ) 334 50,611 - - - 50,611 48975
Bonds (Note (b)) FEAGELD) 8.97t012.5 2,500 2,500 7,500 85,000 97,500 52,576

232,083 2,500 1,500 85,000 327,083 280,523

Derivative - net settlement (Note (¢)  fi=TE-#8&

£E (M)
Interest rate swaps kgt 1413 18 - - 1,616 1,563
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ JMEEEAH) 21,256 16,342 - - 37,598 36,503

2,119 16,485 - - 39,214 38,066
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<

Financial risk management (continued) 3 HBIREREE @
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HEEEEZE@
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REBESRRE (F)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) TENE & RFYFE i 7% (4
Weighted Total
average undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate  Within Tyear ~ 1-2years  2-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
Nk
TSR R1ERM 128 25F  SENE iseE e
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BBt ABTn  A%Tn BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2013 W-%8-2%
=R=t-H
Trade payables BHRNTE 64,076 - - - 64,076 64,076
Other payables EtENFE 35073 - - - 35,073 35073
Bank borrowings (Note (3) F11a8 (W3t ) 339 38,760 - - - 38760 37,488
137,909 - - - 137,909 136,637
Derivative - net settlement (Note (¢)  fi£TA-F&
£E (M3t (o)
Interest rate swaps S (157) 1,276 17 - 1,36 1,195
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SMEEEAH) 4474 3,541 - - 8,015 7802
4317 4,817 17 - 9,251 8,997
Notes: BifeE
(a) For the Group's variable-rate interest bearing borrowings, (a) BAREWTFLEEMS - AT

(©

NN ETE Y

the weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted cash flow
analysis.

For the Group’s fixed-rate interest bearing bonds,
respective effective interest rate of each of the Group's
fixed-rate interest bearing bonds at the end of each
reporting period is used for undiscounted cash flow
analysis.

The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial
instruments was determined assuming all variables used
in the fair value calculation at the end of each reporting
period remained the same until maturity.

The amounts included above for variable interest

rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates

of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

BREREDTHRANERE
HRRE R A SR B AT B SR AN
I ERMRHEH o

(b) FhAER M40 [E SE ) R 5+ B E T
= AREREEMNEFEES
REHRERRNSERNRTA
RARRBSHEA ©

©  EEELRIAGKFARS
REE - VERREREDER
BEEHMA - A EATE
TR BASTE -

FHFAETESRMAETS
TRZ2®H  SFESNXRZ
S8 S R 5 HR B E 2 Rt
FERBEHZRET A ME
) o
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3

R ETE Y

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowings (Note 32), bonds
(Note 37), net of cash and bank balances, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated by bank borrowings and bonds
divided by the total assets. The gearing ratio of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 was 10.86% (2013: 4.24%).

3

B E e EIE ()

(b)

EXERE

AEEEREERARRAEENZ
ERBREHASET LS - LR
FEBEC B A R R AR AR
RERAE - ALK B ERBERAE S 6
EFERERTE

AEBNEREERFESFE B
BERTEES (HRE32) - &5 (M
37) R E MRITHEHR KA R A
BEARARIENER (BEERTRA
Rf#fR) ©

E=UEMT AR EARRE - B
EEBHN R EEEEEEMAN
MESERABR AR - RIZES
M - AEERERIRMNE « #
BT BOBEARETHES
HBORAES  FTEHEBRBEAR
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e B mERNE

3 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at

fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at their fair values at 31
March 2014 and 2013.

3 HEEREEE)

(c)

ERIANAFE

TREGBEEDTRATFEIRZE
BTH - FRMRIZEELT

o (RBEEXEBEEBEDNSZ
B CREAR) (F—R) -

. BRE-RMBEZHREN B
EXEBEZEEHARER
AR E & (BMEAR) sk (A
REER) 28R (=) -

. BEXBETIFREAIBED
BRIz B A RE (BNER B
REABEB) (F=R) -

TREIN-F-—MER-F—=F
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e B mRNE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HRERERE @)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) ()0 SMIBENQFE@E
2014 2013
“3-RF I
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

R =8 LR ai 4 228 1 A
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 — HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BTr ERTR EMTn #BTn BT AT BT AT

Financial assets SHEE
Held-for-trading investments: ~ £/EEEMIRE :

- Listed equity securities - tmkAES 162 - - 162 145 - - 145
Derivatives: fiATA:

~Foreign currency forward -BEELY

contracts - 746 - 746 - 116 - 116

- Iterest rate swaps —TEES - - - - - 65 - 65
Avallable-for-sale investments ~ WHHERE

- Unlited debt securites -~k LiERESR - 5,003 - 5,003 - 410 - 410

- Listed equity securities - tmRAES 74,314 - - 74314 52,980 - - 52,980
Total i 14,476 5,749 - 80,225 53,125 4303 - 57428
Financial liabilities SHER
Derivatives: fiETR:

- Foreign currency forward -BEHaH

contracts - 36,503 - 36,503 - 7,802 - 7,802

~Interest rate swaps ~FlkiEs - 1,563 - 1,563 - 1,195 - 1,195
Bonds % - - 52,576 52,576 - - - -
Total 5t - 38,066 52,576 90,642 - 8,997 - 8,997
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in both RREEERN B—H B -_H/RE
years. =Mz BN s -
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Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange classified as
held-for-trading investments or available-for-sale
investments.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of
the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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(ii)
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(ii) Financial instruments in level 2 (continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements within level 2 are as follows:

Valuation techniques

fRERTS
Foreign currency Discount cash flow, Black-Scholes
forward contracts option pricing model and Monte

Carlo simulation
HNEERERE K R en  EHDEEERAR
SR REREDE

Interest rate swaps Discount cash flow and Monte

Carlo simulation

4= 1 R R LS REEEA

Unlisted debt securities Discount cash flow

FLEmEBES BRI

(iii) Financial instruments in level 3

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements within level 3 are as follows:

Valuation techniques

fEERI
Bonds Discount and flow
&% ERER

(i) F=FZFHEBMIE@

E_RRNAFEERRMG
BRI RBABRMT

Significant inputs
EXRBARE

Observable exchange rate,
currency volatility and yield
curve

AERER - EERE KR

Observable yield curve, HIBOR
rate, exchange rate and
currency volatility

ARG - BBIRITEZE
HFRURIE - [EXRE¥RS

Observable interest rate
A ER SRR =

(i) F=ABNERMTAE

FE=FAANAFEERAE
ERTRBABIRMAT

Significant inputs
ER@ABE

Expected future payments and
effective interest rate
T8 BAAR SR AN R B B PR A
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Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

QOil reserves are key elements in the Group’s investment
decision-making process. They are also an important
element in determining the amount of amortisation of
the oil exploitation rights included in other intangible
assets and depreciation of oil properties included in
property, plant and equipment, and for testing for
impairment. Changes in proved and probable oil
reserves, will affect unit-of-production amortisation,
depreciation and depletion recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the oil exploitation
rights and oil properties related to oil production
activities.

A reduction in proved and probable reserves or an
increase in future development expenditure will increase
amortisation charges, depreciation and depletion and
increase net loss. Proved and probable reserve and
future development expenditure estimates are subject
to revision, either upward or downward, based on
new information, such as from development drilling
and production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans. In general, changes in the technical
maturity of oil reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and production
activities have tended to be the most significant cause of
annual revisions.

AEEgREELERIEMAR (2R
BERABATHRARAB ZERKEMZHE
H) $EE B At RHIER -

AR A BARAZ A RIBR - et
B2 i ERETRGRO RENE
BERIAR - AEEARREEHR T B
HBEERNAERA B REAEFLE
RBE2 5t RERBLIT -

DHFAEBHAREZRERAREFE
HMEE  TEEELHDREGEA
Hib B EE) #iH R FOmEE (FTA
WE - BB KRR ) T EARETR
BERH 2 EBRRE - RO R BRE A
REZZL  STERETEBZEY
53R Bt B e AR A BN AR R 2 o
HRERRREE 2 B ESHE
FERFESE -

PREA K B S (B D slOR SR A 3 Bl 52
NGB AN SR S - 3T E IBREIA
NAEINEEHEE - IREA R BLRE R 2 K%
RIS A AT AR RT A BHE
A EskA MERT - flan - kA FREE
REEEESHHRELERR 21
ZHER - BREMER - SRIERX
HFAEA BT - MR - REME
ERBHH A S R RITES KR
HFEFERHENREIERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mRNE

4  Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

Impairment of oil exploitation rights
included in other intangible assets and oil
properties included in property, plant and
equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights and
oil properties are assessed for impairment when facts
and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts
of them may exceed their recoverable amounts. The
Group’s determination as to whether they are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the assets. The Group relied on experts to assess the
geological prospects for the discovery of oil in the oil
field and estimated the value of oil to be produced in the
future at a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. For drilling costs and other exploration
and evaluation assets, the Group determined whether
the related well costs are expensed if it is determined that
such economic viability is not attained after performing
further feasibility studies that is usually completed within
one year of completion of drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

4

B ST fhEt K M ()

(b)

AMBAERET A & (T A B A&
BE) REMEE (FFAYE - K
ER&E) BE

11 28 1 BRI AR B 0 e B BR AT P RE

BROM B B 2 AR E P BE R B AL AJ B
SR - A AhRERERRREEZ
FREMEETTRUERE - NEBEERE
AHFAREREHEERLRES
ZEFTEEZ KL - AEE R
R S R 700 R 3535 A Z s E A
= WIREE 2 TR KGR REE
ZAHBEAGERE - ERERK
AR EAMBHRRFEEE - AEER
SE BLAR B H A ANTIER S RO IR 12
RETRE —FREKERNE T
AATIER SRR DR Z R A BB

S o

Bl

EEREMETD PR EERER
RESAFEL S - EREZRRA
BEZEZTHDRERER - B
ERERTHER
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition, and requires the use
of judgments and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each statement of financial position date.

4

B S Rt & M ()

(c)

(d)

BERE

EEERELDRER  BEMGFE
DEBAENREELBMERE
B - ETEREENTER - NEE
AhFTR S E A B HMEERRK
RenBWEEREHRRERAER
B ERREBERERESNIED
FIREE BB ARERRX

ERAFLABHAEERSRETRA
PRERANA = ZRER - T B EERR
AREZEZSReRERD - &l
FERBEMAT AR ©

BSRWFNE  ANRE  BE
R o B WK R

AEE 2 BEERELE SRR
Z At 2 B A EE B SRR
B AR - 1e R EMEKRTIR
ZRERE - AHEDREBEEEPRE
MEBAZERREN B A HRE
o WAE BB KRG - EEES
MNEF BN R A B A B RIRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mRNE

4  Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(e) Fair value of derivative financial

(f)

instruments

Management uses its judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments
not quoted in an active market. For derivative financial
instruments such as interest rate swaps and currency
swaps, assumptions are based on quoted market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument based on
inputs supported by observable market prices or rates.

The fair value of warrants issued requires judgement in
determining the expected volatility of the share price,
the dividends expected on the shares, the risk-free
interest rate during the life of the warrants. Details of
the assumptions used in determining the fair value of the
warrants are set out in Note 8.

Accounting for the warrants issued with
fair value substantially higher than the
identifiable consideration received

For the warrants issued with fair value substantially
higher than the identifiable consideration received,
management is required to apply judgement in
determining the accounting for the warrants either
under ‘share-based payments’ or ‘financial instruments’.
Management considers whether there are any facts
or circumstances indicating the excess of fair value of
the warrants over the consideration received is not
representing any unidentifiable goods or services and the
warrants are accounted for under ‘financial instruments’.
Otherwise, the warrants are accounted for under ‘share-
based payments'.

4

B S Tt K M (@)

(e)

()
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

4  Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(9)

Recognition of share-based payments

The Group's employees have participated in various
share-based incentive schemes of the Company. The
Company has also granted warrants to suppliers for the
provision of services. Management of the Group have
used the Binomial Model to determine the total value
of the options or warrants granted, which is based
on fair value and various attributes of the underlying
shares of the Company. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made in determining the
parameters for applying the Binomial Model, including
estimates and assumptions regarding the risk-free rate
of return, expected dividend yield and volatility of the
underlying shares and the expected life of the share
options or warrants. In addition, the Group is required
to estimate the expected percentage of grantees that
will remain in employment or terms with the Group
or, where applicable, if the performance conditions for
vesting will be met at the end of the vesting period. The
Group only recognises an expense for those options or
warrants expected to vest over the vesting period during
which the grantees become unconditionally entitled to
theses share-based awards. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material effect on the
determination of the fair value of the options or warrants
and the amount of such share-based awards expected to
become vested, which may in turn significantly impact
the determination of the share-based payments.

4

BSRE st st RHE (&)

(9)

BB X2 HE

AEEZEEE2EARRZEIEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GNERE R e

Revenue and segment information

The executive directors of the Company have been regarded
as the CODM. The Group’s operating segments, based on
information reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment, are as follows:

Trading of commodities (“commodity trading”);

° Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“crude oil”);

o Sale of paints, blended solvents and plastic colorants
(“chemical products”);

° Provision of exploration drilling services (“service
contract”); and

o Lease of investment properties (“property investment”).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment loss/
profit represents the loss made or profit earned by each
segment without allocation of incomes or expenses which
are not recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group’s
operating performance, including bank interest income,
central administration costs, directors’ emoluments, share of
results of associates, changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments and derivative financial instruments, share-based
payments and finance costs.

R 5 EE R
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ET e

Revenue and segment information
(continued)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than interests in
associates, derivative financial assets, other financial assets,
tax recoverable, cash and bank balances and other corporate
assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group'’s liability is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expenses, depreciation,
depletion and amortisation, unallocated other income
less expenses and non-controlling interests (“EBITDA” or
“LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly, EBITDA or LBITDA is also
presented.

D RBRHE DRBRITHEHE -

13

REEDBRERR D ERDEERM
= MBEEASRELE D BE(NHE
RElzHED  TESREE  HtbemE
B AIRERIE - Re RRITESR R EAM
RAEERIN) -

i

7

il

>

ITELERREBH O REENETER
DERRBT L - TERERRELET
HEMAEB 2BENT  FELEZ27)
BREF -

TREERRENEHAGEZGRREA
WARKAFR  FIEHAX &
FEIB R S - R BL H b AR B 2 B
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[LBITDA]) ° EEltt » EBITDASKLBITDAZF T 1A
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 Notes t6 the Consolidated Firidncial Statements

e PR R A T

5 Revenue and segment information 5 WakaEER @
(continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DEWBERFESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBIRAEHRREEDFE D 2K
results by reportable and operating segments. mREEDITIAT ©

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-E-MEZR=T-ALFE
Commodity Chemical Service Property Segment
trading Crude oil products contract  investment total  Eliminations Total
it Fa IER  BERH  MERE  2EeR i aif
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS000
A¥Tn BN ERTn E8Tn EWTR BRfn ERTn ARTR

Segment revenue b ey

External sales Hihe 841,489 12,519 119,783 8,476 - 982,321 - 982,321

Inter-segment sales ABREE - - - - - - - -
Total =1 841,489 12,579 119,783 8,476 - 982,327 - 982,327
Sonent(BDAVEBIDA  SE(BTOMKBTA (636 (20 m (24n) () BLE) -
Segment depreciation, ARE 7B

depletion and amortisation R (1,670) (5,907) (356) (12,414) (543) (20,890) - (20,890)
Segment results DL (18,039) (10,177) 1,116 (24,826) (19) (52722) - (52722)
Unallocated expenses FORER (86,505)
Finance income HERA 658
Finance costs RERA (1,920)
Share of results of associates  EfEEEAF %% (759)
Loss before income tax RAER(FR)/

(expensesicredit EahiEE (141,248)
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

e B mERNE

Revenue and segment information
(continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

5 WHERkIBER@E)

(@) =

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F-R=t-ALFE

BE R EE @)

Commodty Chemical Sevice Property Segment
trading Crude ol products contract ~~ investment total  Eiminations Total
EnE% 4] LIZR ah NERE At i Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AT AETT AT AETT BT AT AETT
Segment revenue pipclic
External sales HoMEE 798,439 29,226 144,855 19,290 - 991,810 - 991,810
Inter-segment sales HERHE = - 3,004 5305 - 8349 (8349) -
Total =l 798,439 29,226 147,899 24,595 - 1,000,159 (8,349 991,810
Seqment (LBITDAVEBITDA 7% (LBITDAYEBITDA (6,856) (168) 6,040 17920 (2,029 14,907 - 14,907
Segment depreciation, ARG FE
depletion and amortisation e (1,734) (9.898) (3,284) (6,115) (543) (21,574) - (21,574)
Segment results EE (8,590) (10,066) 2756 11,805 (2,572) (6,667) - (6,667)
Unallocated expenses RARER (90,273)
Finance income BAKA 1,199
Finance costs HANA (2,080)
Share of results of associates  EfEBEAAZEE (12,711)
Loss before income tax RAER(R%)/
(expenses)/credit REAER (11059)

Revenue from three customers (2013: three customers)
in relation to commodity trading (2013: commodity
trading) amounted to approximately HK$750,272,000
(2013: HK$679,142,000), which individually represents
more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

?ﬁ?ﬁuﬂuféi%(::—:ﬁ AmES)m
CREAZREF
ﬁ)ZM&z 4974 750,272,000 T ( ZE—=

& B ¥679,142,0007T ) °
10% 2 NEBW R 4RFE -

,zizfﬁ a

=ER

£EHMEZN
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e B HRRNE

5 Revenue and segment information 5 WaEk7EER @)

nE

(continued)

(b) Segment assets (b) PEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s assets by REEIZAEREEDHE D 2 EE
reportable operating segment: AT :
2014 2013
—2-nmF —F=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Commodity trading AmES 163,304 83,530
Crude oil R 347,461 352,641
Chemical products {E TER 11,237 24,424
Service contract AR5 & 49 85,969 114,482
Property investment Y E 24,425 24,968
Total segment assets DEREERE 632,396 600,045
Unallocated RO 302,559 285,099
Total assets 1E B 934,955 885,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

<]

; ABRENT

Revenue and segment information 5 WakaEER @
(continued)
(c) Other segment information () HthpEEHR

Amount included in the measure of
segment results or segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
written off

Recognition of impairment losses
of trade receivables

Recognition of impairment
losses of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment

TANEREINRAR
TECEE:
BEFRGEE
UEN TG

HEARATEED
LAERR
HEMNE  RER
AfEARRD
LRERR
HENE  BERRE
bl

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-S-MESA=T-ALEE

Commodity
trading
BRE%
HKS'000
BT

8

(103)

(16,838)

(1)

Crude oil

¥
HK$'000
BETT

2,066

(128)

Chemical ~ Service  Property

products  contract investment Unallocated
LIER BEEH 9ERE AAR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BTn  ERTn EBTn AWTR

(1,129 -

(2108)  (12,102) - -

- - - (14)

Total
a1
HKS000
ABTn

2,29

(114)

(1129)

(31,08)

(183)
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e B HRRNE

Revenue and segment information

(continued)

(c)

Amount included in the measure of
segment results or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets
Recognition of impairment lasses of
property, plant and equipment
Recognition of impairment
losses of investment properties
and prepaid land lease payments
Reversal of impairment losses
of trade receivables
Recognition of impairment
losses of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Gains/(losses) on disposals of
property, plant and equipment
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Other segment information (continued)

TANEREINRAR
TECEE:
FERRDEE

%  BERRERD
LAERR
IRENZREN LS
HETRERD L
HEBR
HRARLNERD
LRERR
HRMTE #ER

R BURRDL
HEER

HENR  BRRREL
e/ (E7)

5 WHEKkDEER @)
() HtpEER @
For the year ended 31 March 2013
B T-TEZA=T-ELEE
Commodity Chemical Service  Property

tadng  Crudeol  products  contract investment  Unallocated Total
it i KIER  REeh  hERE ol it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
AT AbTn  BETn BT BT T ABTr
6,088 9,746 180 103778 710300 130119
- - 8617 = = - 861
- - (8,524) - - - (8,524)
- - 4368 - - - 4368
(9,538) - (52) - - - (9,590)
(587) - 5913 2338 - (114) 7550




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

5 Revenue and segment information 5 WaEk7EER @)
(continued)

(d) Geographical information (d) H#HEZEE
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Hong RNEBZEBURFE - BB RWBER
Kong and the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”). HEEFE([MRERANE]) - AEBEIZRAL
The Group's revenue from external customers is based EimE D 2 REINRE P 2 W RIRE
on the location of their operations and information BEMEMHE D 2 ERBDEE 2 BRI
about its non-current assets is based on geographical M

location of the assets that are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIREF Wz IRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEF —T—=F Z—E=-NF —ZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT

Malaysia P i 750,273 679,142 - =
PRC i 143,658 220,927 388,446 373,589
Hong Kong B 79,920 75,774 151,305 147,156
Kazakhstan Ia & 52 ATE 8,476 15,967 79,927 97,369

982,327 991,810 619,678 618,114
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Other losses, net

Exchange gains, net
(Recognition)/reversal of impairment
losses of trade receivables
Recognition of impairment losses
of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Recognition of impairment losses
of investment properties and
prepaid land lease payments
Recognition of impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment
Recognition of impairment loss of
an available-for-sale investment
Discount on acquisition
Gains/(losses) on disposals of
subsidiaries/business, net
(Losses)/gains on disposals of
property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment
written off
Gain on disposal of an
available-for-sale investment
Losses from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments
Losses from changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments
Wavier of other payables, net
Others
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B egs -
S8 HEKTIR (BR),/
ROz REEE
REMFE  RER
it ERFUERER
ZREER
RRENEREN L
HEFERER

R EER
HIE - BiE RRERR
ZRERR
s AR HERE R
ZRERBR
WESE 2 r#
HERBAR/ $B2
Wt/ (B1R) - F8
HENE  BELREZ
(BR),/ s
UER e

HE—EAHLERE
W
PTESBMIARTE
2 ER
RERERENTE
e 31
AtRAFERR  FE
Aty

6 HttFEa  FHE

2014 2013

—F-hF —T=F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HsE BETT BETT
3,060 3,656

27(d) (1,129) 4,368
24(d) (31,048) (9,590)
18,19 - (8,524)
17 - (8,617)
- (3,315)

38 - 1,956
39(c) 5,374 (6,214)
(743) 7,550

17 (114) -
25(b) 367 =
(28,785) (3,000)

(36) (654)

- 16,258

(188) (562)

(53,242) (6,688)
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NN ET e

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

Wages, salaries, allowances  T& - ¥i$ 2B R EAMEF
and other benefits

Contributions to defined R HFGR RGBSR
contribution retirement plan

Total wages, salaries and I% - HFekHmBERNERE
other benefits
Share-based payments [FESE E FEEH 2 A
to Honorary Chairman A&7 2 A5 2 5K IR
Total staff costs B IR ANME5E
Warrants

On 25 October 2013, the Company issued 370,000,000 non-
listed warrants (the “Warrants”) to certain independent third
parties at HK$0.01 each. Each warrant entitles the holder to
subscribe for one new share of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.1526 at any time for a period of three years from
the date of issue.

At the issuance of the Warrants, they were recognised at fair
value, determined based on the valuations performed by an
independent professional valuer using the Binomial Model with
the following key assumptions:

Exercise price 1T(EME
Share price (8
Expected volatility TEER B
Remaining life FIERFPR
Risk-free rate R b R

7

ETRAN(BEEEME)

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
30,366 30,956
355 315
30,721 31,271
- 14,400
30,721 45,671
IR REE

RZZE—=F+A=1+HAB XAFKSE
DRIBIEREE0.01 TAETBLIE=H
%%47370,000,000 {3 IF T -RR% R ([ 330
EFE]) c BHNRREER THHE AEFR A
REEIT B =FAEASREIRITEESE
0.1526 JLRRIEAR A Al —IRFTAR(D

RETRIREER - BRAFEBR - K
RATEERRDIZBLE X (L ERRA
— IR EERSUETHEEREE -

Group and Company
AEBRART
Issue date as at 25 October 2013
RZZE—=F1+A=T+HB#TH

HK$0.1526 75 0.1526 7T
HK$0.1610 B¥0.1610 7T
50.946% 50.946%
3 years 34
0.462% 0.462%
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e B HRRNE

Warrants (continued) 8

The Warrants were measured at fair value of HK$20,040,000
at the initial recognition, and were credited to share-based
payment reserve in accordance with HKFRS 2. The excess
of the fair value of the warrants over the consideration of
HK$3,700,000 received, amounting to HK$16,340,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil) (Note 35).

Operating loss 9

[tems charged in arriving at ~ REBUS & EIERIIR 2

the operating loss include: THH B
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE 2
Audit services FIZIRTS
— Current year —REE
— Under-provision for —REFERETRE
prior years
Non-audit services HEEZMRIE
Operating lease expenses WEHERY
Share-based payments in BFREBEEZABRMN 2
respect of consultation RIE (M7E 24(b))

fee (Note 24(b))

REEBRVEERFRATFEBE
20,040,000 oAt & + WARE BB HE
RIS 2 SRET ALARRD 23 2 RIBREE - R
A 3 A AR R 2 W BB 3,700,000
TCHYER H B ) € %E A7 %5 16,340,000 7T
ERBE-_T-—HWNE=ZA=1+—"HILFE
AN RANBR(ZE—=4F : /) (3
35) °

KEEE
2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T R T
3,000 2,800
- 251
484 100
9,647 9,857
6,180 2,060
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10 Finance income and costs

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest expenses on ITEEZFMERRL
— bank loans and overdrafts wholly ~ —ZBRAFREHEEZ
repayable within 5 years RITERRBES (1,384) (2,080)
— bonds wholly repayable — AR A FERTBHEE
after 5 years Z1EF (536) -
(1,920) (2,080)
Interest income on: AT EIEZFEWA :
— bank deposits —iRITFR 422 152
— other financial assets —Hihem&E 236 415
— other receivables — H b YR - 632
658 1,199
Finance costs, net BERA - FER (1,262) (881)
11 Income tax expenses/(credit) 11 FiBHiRx (%)
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
PRC corporate income tax: REIREMRST
Current year REE - 1
Hong Kong profits tax: BANEH
Under-provision in prior years BETFERETR 15,940 =
Deferred income tax (Note 36) EIEFT1SHE (FiT5E36) (1,202) (719)
14,738 (718)

e B mERNE

10 BEWRARRA

BRI BEAESEANRER - BAR
AEBRPBEKLZHBARZ FEME
FIfSMEEEE25%(ZF—=F : 25%) °

In accordance with relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC corporate income tax rate applicable to
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC is principally
25% (2013: 25%).
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No current Hong Kong profits tax and PRC corporate income
tax have been provided for as the Group did not have any
assessable profits in Hong Kong nor in the PRC for the year
(2013: PRC corporate income tax of HK$1,000).

Up to 28 March 2014, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD"”) has issued protective profits tax
assessments of approximately HK$32,572,000 (2013:
HK$32,418,000) in aggregate for the years ended 31 March
1997 to 2007 (i.e. assessment years 1996/97 to 2006/07)
against certain subsidiaries of the Company. In prior years,
the Group paid Hong Kong profits tax amounting to
approximately HK$6,332,000 (2013: HK$6,332,000) and
recognised the income tax expanses in the consolidated income
statement amounting to approximately HK$3,453,000 (2013:
HK$3,453,000), resulting in prepaid Hong Kong profits tax
of HK$2,879,000 (2013: HK$2,879,000). In respect of the
protective tax assessments, certain subsidiaries of the Company
have lodged objections with the IRD.

Previously, when pending the outcome of the objections,
the IRD agreed to completely hold over the tax in disputes
of HK$11,808,000 (2013: HK$11,654,000) on the condition
that the TRC in equivalent amounts were purchased for
respective assessment years 1996/97 to 2006/07. These TRC
were accounted for as prepayments, deposits and other
receivables under current assets. The IRD agreed to hold
over the remaining tax in disputes of HK$14,432,000 (2013:
HK$14,432,000) unconditionally.

On 28 March 2014, the IRD accepted the settlement proposal
submitted by the Group and issued the notices of revised
additional assessment, interest demand notes and statements
of losses covering the years of assessment from 1996/97 to
2011/12 of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Based on
the revised tax assessments, the aggregate final tax provision
was assessed to be approximately HK$19,393,000, of which
approximately HK$13,272,000 was relating to the years of
assessment from 1996/97 to 2001/02, for the above years of
assessments. As a result, an under-provision of Hong Kong
profits tax amounting to approximately HK$15,940,000 was
recognised in the current year.
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HRAEERFANTEERERTFHEES
R ERTER - AL ERBAFEFB
MERECEMSHELRE(ZT—=
& PEBZEAMEHE1,0007T) ©

HE_ZZ—NWNE=A=-_+N\B" &
BRER(#HBER)REE—NLLESF
E_TTLEF=ZA=F+—RHIEFE
_jljl/\/jlt:c_v 7/\/f‘tn%$ﬁfﬁ
B) MAARETHEBAREGXELR
P 1 R 15 m&w@,%%az 572,000 7T ( =
T— =4 : B 1H324180007T) c RNBE
FE AEEEXNEREFESHROAELK
6,332,000 7T (== — =4 : 4% 6,332,000
TL)  WRERE KSR AERTESH X
) #3,453,000 (=T —=F : B
3,453,000 7T ) ° ﬁﬁzﬁﬁé%ﬁwﬁﬁiﬁﬁz
2,879,000 7T (= F—=4 : ¥ 2,879,000
7woﬁ%hﬁ%mma'$ﬂﬂ%$W§
AAIE RS HRERE

BREIRZER RBERRAEE2H
B FED z”5%’#18118080007%(:%
— =% : #E¥%11,654,0007T) ' HEARK

— AR/ NEEZBER T BFHE
EEESHIENS ZEREBHFRR
BETEEMRIE  Be REMERGR
1B - RIS RREEGHEBR T FER
KKV 14,432,000 0 (ZF— =4 : Bl
14,432,000 7T) °

RZT—NMF=A=+N\B REFEE
AN 7N £ (B 1R 22 A AR R R 0 B AR B ET
BB BHAE NERANEREBER
HE  BE—NANAANE  NQWEFE-Z
—— &/ ZFHARRETHEARN
IR EREEETI TN B LA FERT
BMOSKRBEBEEETHEELRNEE
19,393,000 7T (E A #75% 13,272,000 5
— AN/ NEFEZZTE— TR
FEZFHE) - Bt - AFEERREENE
TR~ R 40755 15,940,000 7T °

PHRFRERERAR T = WFFERS



Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3l

NN ET e

Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued)

As Mr. Poon Sum, the Honorary Chairman of the Company,
Mr. Poon Sau Tin and Ever Source Enterprises Limited,
substantial shareholders of the Company, have committed
to indemnify the potential tax exposures prior to the listing
of the Company in 2002 if the exposure beyond an amount
of approximately HK$7,822,000. Accordingly, the Group
recognised a receivable from substantial shareholders of
approximately HK$5,450,000 as at 31 March 2014 (Note 42).

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year (2013: Nil).

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax expenses/(credit)
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
tax rate in the PRC applicable to the Group as follows:

BRPIS TR (%)
Al &R

Loss before income tax
expenses/(credit)

BAH TSR R R 25%
—ZT— =% :25%)

Tax at domestic income tax
rate of 25% (2013: 25%)

TERHIIE
Tax effect of share of results FE(L B & N B 2 S4B Y
of associates MG E
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERI R E R EED
differences not recognised MG E

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RiERTIBE RS E

Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Under-provision in prior years REFERETRE

PSR/ (%)

Income tax expenses/(credit)

PRI FAX ORBZE

11

Fri8FipE s, (%) (@)

HARAARIREERERTCERETRAE
B % 5% o4 K Ever Source Enterprises
LimitedBAFHR —TE_FARA LT
AT & 7E 15 765 [ Bz fini 8 38 75 % 7,822,000 7T
{ERE - ALt - AEBR =T —NF=A
=+ HBERRE EERE 2 ERFKEL
7&# 5,450,000 7T (Ff7E42) °

RAFE  HEFRAEbE2EKEENZ
BT E (T —=F &) -

BRAEEZBRAERMAS(ER) 31
BeRERRAASEMMER ZHBEBRE
AHEMEL 2 EmEIZRMNT

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(141,248) (110,592)
(35,312) (27,648)
(190) 3,193
7,906 6,680
14,016 5,842
(757) (48,095)
13,135 59,310
15,940 =
14,738 (718)
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e B HRRNE

12 Directors’ and chief executive’s 12 EERFETHAEMNS
emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of eight (2013: eight) ENSENTFNAR(ZE—Z=ZF: \R)E
directors were as follows: =XEHNMeIT

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-E-ME=RA=t-ALFE

Salaries,

allowances  Retirement

Director's and benefits scheme  Share-based
fees inkind contributions  payments Total
Ei
BER  BMAGE URGRA
EZfe BB #H% LA fit

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTn  ERTn BB BRTR ERTR

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Poon Sum BARLE - 4,824 15 - 4,839

Mr. Wang Bo TREE - 120 - - 120

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note) ERR LA (FE) - 462 15 - 477

Mr. Poon Wai Kong EERIEE - 1,176 15 - 1,191

- 6,582 45 - 6,627

Non-Executive Director FaiEs

Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif 245 20 - - - 240

Independent Non-Executive Directors BuUfES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin BREZE 4 264 - - - 264

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul bR EE 264 - - - 264

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REBEE 264 - - - 264
792 - - - 792

Total il 1,032 6,582 45 - 7,659
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e B mERNE

12 Directors’ and chief executive's 12 EEBRFETHAEMNE @)
emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-T-=F=R=1-HL%EE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement

Director's  and benefits scheme  Share-hased
fees inkind contributions ~ payments Total
Hé -
2R BRGTE MRGEH
20k ENilE 3% B At

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT E%Tn  B¥TR BT

Executive Directors HiES

Mr. Poon Sum BRLE = 4,824 15 14,400 19,239

Mr. Wang Bo TREE - 110 - - 110

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note) HER LA (i) - 462 15 = 477

Mr. Poon Wai Kong EERILE - 1,176 15 - 1,191

- 6,572 45 14,400 21,017

Non-Executive Director FUTES

Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif 5o 85 - - - 85

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin REREE 264 - - - 264

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul BiiEEE 264 - - - 264

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung REETE 264 - - - 264
792 - - - 792

Total At 877 6,572 45 14,400 21,894

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments RWEFEEN © ANA [ E B9 EREEM

payable by the Group in both years. REEEN S -

Note: B e

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung is also the chief executive officer of the Group. HREREENRARE 2 ITHAEE -
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e B HRRNE

13 Senior managements’ emoluments 13 SREEEMT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2013: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note 12. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2013: three) individuals were as follows:

FEEFHESHERALESR - HHM
HZH(ZT—Z=ZF: MB)BRARAEE K
FHMEeENME 12 HBp=2(ZF—=
F o =ZR) ATHMEWT

2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e REAMmE 2,581 3,753
Contributions to defined TE R FGR IRET BIHY 5K

contribution retirement plan 45 45
2,626 3,798

Their emoluments were within the following bands: RENH SR TATEHE :

Number of individuals
AB

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 7&5#500,0017c %% 1,000,00070 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 751,000,001 cE 85 1,500,0007T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 cE 8 #2,000,0007T - 1
3 3

During the current and prior years no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the above directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

RAFEFBEFE - AN B L&A ER
bR E R R AL &I A LA AE B
£ BRI SR B S A0 A AN 5 B B
RERERBERAE -
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e B HRERNE

14 Loss for the year attributable to owners of 14

15

16

the Company

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$45,396,000 (2013:
HK$171,539,000).

Loss per share 15

Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company
is calculated by dividing loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year.

Loss for the year (HK$'000) RENEE (BB TT)
Weighted average number BEETERRZ
of ordinary shares in issue T (FR)

(shares in thousands)

Basic loss per share (HK cents) ERREAREE (FL)

The share options and warrants outstanding at 31 March 2014
and 2013 have no dilutive effect on basic loss per share.

Dividend 16

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of
any dividend during the year (2013: Nil).

RRAHEB ANBERFREE

ARAREAABIEERFEANERTDRAE
RAIZHBHRERANEE BELOE
#45396,000( = & — = F: B K&
171,539,000 7T) °

BREER
ARFEE AN FRENERREAR

REFEEANRERFAEBERAFAE &
TR Z IR BT E

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=fF
(151,155) (115,255)
4,600,624 4,329,075
(3.29) (2.66)

R-B—NMER-—E—=6¢6=A=+—H
i AR AT 150 2 i AR e Tk R IR R < 0 A 3 R
EAXBEEESEYE -

X &N

EFSTRERNFARMEDRE (T
—=F )
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Cost:

At 1 April 2012

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 38)

Additions

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 39)

Transfers

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2013

Additions

Disposals

Disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 39)

Written off (Note 6)

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2014

A
RZF-Z£MmA-A
WEHBAT
(FizE38)

HE

ij
HERBAR
(Mi3£39)
B
Era%

R=B-=5=A=1-A
HE
&
HEHBAT
(R&E39)
s (Rt o)
B e

HE-BEZR=-A

e B mRNE

17 Property, plant and equipment

17 % - BMEKRKE

Group Company

AEE AR

Furniture, Furniture,

0l Plantand Motor  fitureand  Construction fixture and

properties  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total  equipment

fra- 8-

RHEE  HREAS g REEGE HERIR ai  REERE

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000

AT BT AT EBTT BT AT BT

125,121 29931 12,764 8,933 6,804 183,553 5573

- 61,715 704 413 - 62,832 -
6,259 40,978 3440 245 110 51,032

- (1,012) (1,208) (700) - (2,920) =

= = (5,355) = = (5,355) =

1,099 - - = (1,099) - -

1,664 39 47 17 177 1,944 -

134,143 131,651 10,392 8,908 5,992 291,086 5573

91 - 174 61 1973 2,299 -

- - (3310) (5) - (3315) -

- - - (252) - (252) -

- ) - (337) - (409) (5

180 (5129) (106) (65) 6 (5,114) -

134,414 126,450 7,150 8,310 797 284,295 5,568
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NN ETE Y

17 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 17 1% - BERRE (&)
Group Company
A5E AR
Furniture, Furniture,
0l Plantand Motor  fitureand  Construction fixture and
properties  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total  equipment
fra - fra -
RHEE  HREAS g REEGE HRIR ai  REERE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
BETT  E¥Tn  B%Txr Bt B%Tn BT #¥Tn

Accumulated depreciation ZERERAE -
and impairment:

At 1 April 2012 R=E——£MA-H 17,021 16,384 7810 5118 = 46,333 1,797
Depreciation for the year rEERE 7,757 9,490 1357 1438 - 20,042 1,114
Disposals hE = (144) (50) (140) - (334) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR

(Note 39) (Ph3£39) = = (4,290) = = (4,290 =
Recognition of BERREER

impairment losses (Mzke)

(Note 6) - 7,087 155 56 1,319 8,617 -
Exchange realignment B} A% 188 5 3 26 17 359 -
At 31 March 2013 RZB-=5=A=1-A 24,966 32822 5,005 6,498 1,436 70,727 2,911
Depreciation for the year TEENE 3,999 12,491 1,935 1,310 - 19,735 1,058
Disposals & - - (1.212) B - (1215)

Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAF(H3H39)

(Note 39) - - = (249) - (249)

Witten off (Note 6) fs8 (Rst o) - (64) - (231) - (295) (4)

Exchange realignment B AT 37 (301) 2 3) 3 (262)

At 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A=1-A 29,002 44,948 5730 1322 1,439 88,441 3,965
Carrying value: B

At 31 March 2014 RZF-RLE=F=1-H 105,412 81,502 1,420 988 6,532 195,854 1,603

At 31 March 2013 RZE-=£=f=1-H 109,177 98,829 5387 2,410 4,556 220,359 2,662
Note: BT -
Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group, the Group ERNAEBERA T A RN - AEE B HEKIZIAR
has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental rehabilitation since WARBIBRIEEEEEMERFAR - AN - FEREH
its establishment. There is, however, no assurance that stringent environmental BHERBETEEEBRIENBRFERE R, SRFEEE
policies and/or standard on environmental rehabilitation will not be implemented % DBAKEARBIRERE - REBEEBHTRBERE
by the relevant authorities in the PRC in the future which require the Group to Ko/ SUARAER] REEE A VIR 3R 5 & (515 7] A S AN Sk [ A B
undertake environmental measures. The financial position of the Group may be BIRSAERK NFIRZE o

adversely affected by any environment liabilities, which may be imposed under
such new environment policies and/or standards.
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e B mRNE

18 Prepaid land lease payments 18 FE{[tiEEFE
Group
EE
2014 2013
—E-NF =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Cost: BXANE :
At beginning of the year REH 3,810 4,893
Disposals HE - (1,083)
3,810 3,810
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH RO E
and impairment:
At beginning of the year REH] 3,810 1,713
Amortisation for the year AN H - 58
Impairment loss for the year RNELREERE (H3E6)
(Note 6) - 2,213
Disposals HE - (174)
At end of the year RER 3,810 3,810
Carrying value: REE :

At end of the year RER - -
The Group'’s prepaid land lease payments represent leasehold REBWTENR L3 TH ERIFIRAL R E B LA
land outside Hong Kong under medium-term leases. Hht (@ B R BRFE E TR & 4o o

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 147 HEEASRIERER AT — T =ZF —PUFEEERE



Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

19 Investment properties 19 BREYE
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost: FRAE -
At beginning of the year REH 25,658 79,639
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39(c)) HERIBAE (FFE39(c) - (53,981)
At end of the year RER 25,658 25,658
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE KRR E -
and impairment:
At beginning of the year REH] 770 37,824
Depreciation for the year REFHE 513 616
Recognition of impairment TR EEE (Fi5E6)
loss (Notes 6) - 6,311
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39(c)) HERBAE (FFE39(c) - (43,981)
At end of the year RER 1,283 770
Carrying value: REE :
At end of the year RER 24,375 24,888
Notes: B &E
(a) The Group's investment properties at their net carrying value are analysed (a) AEEUELRIFENMENREDEIFTOT
as follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
e —z-=5
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
In Hong Kong under medium-term leases REBATRBHEERAE 24,375 24,888
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(&%

e B mRNE

Investment properties (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement for investment
properties

HEWA
REVENER LT

Rental income
Direct operating expenses from properties

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's investment properties in Hong
Kong with an aggregate net carrying value of HK$24,375,000 (2013:
HK$24,888,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 32(d)(5)).

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory
Services (HK) Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. As at 31 March 2014, the
aggregate fair values of the Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$28,600,000 (2013: HK$29,000,000). The fair values were determined
using direct comparison approach and have been estimated using current
prices in an active market for similar location and type, with adjustments
for several significant unobservable inputs. The fair value measurement
belongs to Level 3, which significant unobservable inputs are involved in
calculating the fair value of the investment properties. These inputs include
timing of the transactions, floor level and size. There were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

19 REY=E @)

BieE < (4)

(b)

REFARRRERRENEZ B

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
- 36
148 221

(d)
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RZZE—ME=ZA=+—0 ' AEELZREH
HIR A Y % - BREF B 485 A B ¥ 24,375,000
(= ZT — =% : % 24,888,000t ) B 1k
AR - ARG FAKEMRITEE (FiE32(d)
(5))

ERASEREMENBLGEEDBGEEMSE
TEREEBRARARET  UEEREYE
R-E—NFR=T—=F=-A=+—AWQF
B R-ZT—ME=A=1+—8 ' AEEKEY
X2 AT ELEREABY 28,600,000 (ZT—=
4 ¢ 7#5%29,000,0007T) © A T{ETERANE # I
BUABE - WAL 2 REAE R TIS M
EATERGE - RETERIERHRRE A SUEE
THE - RFEAEBE=R  EAFAHRE
AP Rt EREMEATE - ZEH AR
BEXHFRE - BEKTRERE REAEEA -
B BFoBRE=BZ LG o
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NN ETE Y

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according

20 Goodwill 20
Cost: BXANE :
At beginning of the year REH
Disposal of a business HE—HER
Exchange realignment bE 5 SR
At end of the year RER
Accumulated impairment: ZETRE
At beginning of the year REF
Disposal of a business HE—RER
Exchange realignment MEE 5, A 2
At end of the year RER
Carrying value: RmEE :
At end of the year RER

to operating segment. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013,
goodwill is allocated to the commodity segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by Board
of Directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below.

HE
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
30,880 37,404
- (6,524)
42 -
30,922 30,880
14,423 20,947
- (6,524)
20 =
14,443 14,423
16,479 16,457

HERELEI RO REAEE ZERT
REELBMN R_T-—WER_F—=
F=A=+—0 BEIEEEmOHR -

ReELBEMNAIKE SR IREERE
Bt EEAEE - AREDREBEEZEMH
HADRE S FHMMMBEE - ZHpRES
METAEEREE - B 5 FHRENE
EmETIATXFAFIREEHER XS -
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R ETE Y

20 Goodwill (continued) 20 BHE )

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

follows:

Growth rate 15 &
Inflation rate R R
Discount rate I &

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined the weight average growth rate
based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the operating segment.

As at 31 March 2014, if the estimated growth rate applied
decreased to 0.19%, with all other variable held constant,
goodwill will be impaired or otherwise no impairment charge
will be required.

As at 31 March 2014, if the estimated discount rate applied
increased to 20.23%, with all other variable held constant,
goodwill will be impaired or otherwise no impairment charge
will be required.

-0.61% t0 9.32%

AR EEAEENEERRMT

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F

-3.96% to 13.03%
3.00% 3.07%
17.94% 18.05%

ZEBRRCANOMEZDEHREAN T
REeELEN -

EEERBEERAMAEEMISER 2B
HIRS T A I8 R =K - FRERAMITIR X
BEHARRRERSDEAR 2 ARR

G o
2

R-ZZBE-—MFE=A=+—8H  ®MAEAZ
fhEt I R EEZF0.19% @ A PTA &
ERFTE  BHESSRERELMER
T DFEHRES S o

R-ZZE-—NFE=A=+—0 " MAERZ
fhETRE R R+ 2 20.23% - MEAMPAEEE
RETE BESSREREEMERT
PPEHRESH -
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21

e B mERNE

Other intangible assets

Cost:
At 1 April 2012
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2013
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2014

Amortisation and
impairment:
At 1 April 2012
Amortisation for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2013
Amortisation for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2014

Carrying value:
At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

&$E:
R-ZE——FMA—H
i R

R_F—NF=A=1+—H
HHERRE
—T-——FWA—AH

RERHAH
L30T

RoE-=F=A=1-H
R
E

R-Z-MFE=A=1+—H

FREE
“Z-ME=R=1—H

R=2-=#=A=1-A

Hitt B EE
Group
rEE
oil
exploitation Customer

licences relationship Others Total
RHBA AT AT E EFHE& Hitr CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

(Note)

(B3E)
250,028 30,411 1,733 282,172
3,382 206 - 3,588
253,410 30,617 1,733 285,760
345 21 - 366
253,755 30,638 1,733 286,126
25,422 15,190 1,733 42,345
1,031 1,544 - 2,575
340 1 - 341
26,793 16,735 733 45,261
509 1,543 - 2,052
41 1 = 42
27,343 18,279 1,733 47,355
226,412 12,359 - 238,771
226,617 13,882 - 240,499
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21

e B mRNE

Other intangible assets (continued)

Note:

Qil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the location of
Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and 2028 respectively.

At 31 March 2014, the Board of Directors assessed the recoverability of these oil
exploitation licences and concluded no impairment loss was required. The key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

Average oil price per tonne used REFERTLAM

in the first year of forecast (RMB) FERETR (ARE)
Growth rate BR%
Discount rate gk

At 31 March 2014, if the estimated oil price applied decreased to RMB3.714
per tonne, with all other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be
impaired or otherwise no impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2014, if the estimated growth rate applied decreased to -0.26%,
with all other variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or
otherwise no impairment charge will be required.

At 31 March 2014, if the discount rate applied increase to 19.38%, with all other
variable held constant, oil exploitation licences will be impaired or otherwise no
impairment charge will be required.

21

Hib\BAEEE (&)

5§

B ERET Al 2B R B B AR T MBI B R e A0 RE R -
BABR—E_LFR_T=\FEM °

RIE-—MNFE=A=+—H BELETEZSAMMER
STl 2 AT N {5 A R - BAATEHRERTE - AR
AEERERENEEZRROT

2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=F
4,084 4,522
2.62% 3.07%
13.56% 13.92%

REZB-—MNE=A=+—H  MARMBZERETEE
FAMAREI 74T (FEEMBERFTE) - BIAH
FERET A] & MR B oS B R A B A 75 BRI E S H ©

RoF-ME=A=1—0  WARAZEERETR
F-026% (Fi A HABBRSETR) - AEMBIRT &
PSR I BRI R 77 R AR S e

RZFE-—MNEF=ZA=+—8 MAKBZIRXEE
19.38% (PR E B BRI TE) - IR IR A & 1
RIS BAA BT R AEERES L -
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e B mERNE

22 Interests in subsidiaries 22 RMIBARZfEsR
(a) Interests in and amounts due from/to (a) RHEARZERREWR EM

subsidiaries Mt A B2 RIE

Company
NN

2014 2013
—E-ME —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Unlisted shares, at cost LM - ZKAE 3,254 3,254

Contributions to subsidiaries (Note (i)  FHE R EIEHEEE (M () 424,133 423,041

Equity share-based payment PM B 2 Rl 2 RA A E DARR 15

in subsidiaries (Note (ii)) Atz 3R3E (B & (i) 6,832 6,832
Less: Provision for impairment B BB (PR EE (iif))
(Note (iii) (3,726) (3,726)
427,239 426,147
430,493 429,401
Amounts due from FEUS T A R FR3E (HTRE (iv)
subsidiaries (Note (iv)) 176,088 301,026

Less: Provision for impairment R BB R (PR EE Giit) K (v)

(Notes (iii) and (v)) (63,925) (197,031)
112,163 103,995

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (iv)) ~ FEFHIE 2 A1 (FIEE (iv)) (1,515) (2,968)
110,648 101,027

Notes: B e

(i) The contributions to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and (i) TR R A E TR DEER - 28
considered as capital in nature. RERRBERNE -

(ii) In accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, share- (i) BIEEBMBEREENE 25 [ ARG
based payment transactions in which an entity receives services Xt zHE ] BRKEREESRBER
from its employees as consideration for equity instruments of the ER2RATAREZ ARG XM 2K
entity are accounted for as equity-settled transactions (Note 2(y) BHZRDIEAESEER S AR (K
(ii)). The Company has recognised the grant of equity instruments FE2(y)(ii) - AR R EEREKBERFZ
to subsidiaries’ employees amounting to HK$6,832,000 (2013: BRERL&E AE6,832,000T(=F
HK$6,832,000) as contributions to its subsidiaries. — =4 : #¥%6,832,0007T) ZBRATA

ERAEHBARZEE
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e B mRNE

22 Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 22 RANBRTE 2R (&)
(a) Interests in and amounts due from/to (a) RHEARZERREWR EM
subsidiaries (continued) B 8 A Bl 2 FRIE ()

Notes: (continued) B3« (&)

(iii) Provision for impairment on contributions to and amounts due (iif) R B A E 2 EE R EKKE A R KIE
from subsidiaries was as a result of the impairment of assets made ZRERETHRHMEARRNBEFE
by the subsidiaries in prior years. e 2 BEREME -

(iv) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free (iv) FEURFEA I B A B RIB A IR - &

and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ ks
Us$ E
RMB AR
(v) Movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due from

subsidiaries are as follows:

At beginning of the year RER
Recognition of impairment loss IR ERE
Written off (Note) s (B E)
Exchange realignment FE %

At end of the year RER

Note:

(vi)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board of Directors of
the Company resolved to waive the amounts due from subsidiaries
of approximately HK$133,059,000 (2013: HK$186,075,000), the
respective impairment loss recognised in previous years amounting
to approximately HK$133,106,000 (2013: HK$183,969,000) has
been written off.

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March
2014 and 2013 are set out as in Note 44.

BRIREREN -

FE B 2 A
oI

RIAZ EREETR

2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
73,255 68,062
3,383 3,364
34,010 29,601
110,648 101,027

(v) e MBS I8 2 R SR IR 2 R (B B A 8 an
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(vi)

:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
197,031 381,000
- 2,106
(133,059) (186,075)
(47) =
63,925 197,031
BT -
REE-_ZT-—WF=A=+—HILF

B ARREEGH IR 0B R
B Emlﬁé’?%ﬁ%usowooom_
T — =4 : ##186,0750007T ) '
BT F TR zmﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁaf{w&
#133,106,000t( =T —=4F : B¥
183,969,000 7T.) B F 84 ©

ARAR_FB-—WNFR_F—=F=A8
=+—BZEEMBEARFBEHNN T
44 »
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23 Interests in associates

Cost of investments in associates
— Unlisted (Note (a))

Share of post-acquisition
comprehensive losses

Contributions to an unlisted
associate

e B mERNE

23

REE R B ZIRERAE
—3F £ (Fif5E (@)
FEH B IR 2T 1R

m—fE EmEE ARHE

During the year, the movements in the Group's interests in

associates are as follows:

Carrying amount at beginning of the year F#I8EEE

Share of results of associates

Share of exchange reserve of associates

Re-designation of an associate to an

available-for-sale investment (Note (b))

Carrying amount at end of the year

FEIEBE & N B2 %%

FEAG S N BB A (R

BT —HBERRR—
BRI ERE (IR (b))

FREEE

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
75,592 75,592
(43,044) (42,365)
9,327 9,327
41,875 42,554
RER REBREBE QAR 2SS EHm
T
Group
FEE
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
42,554 110,083
(759) (12,771)
80 =
- (54,758)
41,875 42,554

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14 156 HEASRIERER AT — T =ZF —PUEEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23

e B mRNE

Interests in associates (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(@

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

The Group held 43.00% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining Co., Ltd
(“Lee Shing Mining”), which directly holds 100% equity interests in
Guizhou Rongfa Mining Company Limited EMREREEERAR)
("Guizhou Rongfa Mining”), which possesses an exclusive exploration
right of vanadium mining in Guizhou Province, the PRC.

On 3 July 2012, the Board of the Company agreed to forgo the right
to nominate any person to the board of directors of Gold Tat Group
International Ltd. (“Gold Tat”) (formerly known as “Mobile Telecom
Network (Holdings) Limited”). Accordingly, the interest in Gold Tat was
re-designated from an associate to an available-for-sale investment of the
Group, resulting in a gain of approximately HK$7,120,000 recognised
within “share of results of associates”. It is measured at fair value with
reference to the bid prices on the Stock Exchange at 3 July 2012. The
fair value of Gold Tat decreased by HK$1,778,000 from the date of re-
designation to the statement of financial position date. Accordingly, the
same amount was charged to the investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2014 are set out as
follows:

23

Name of Place of Proportion of voting

associate incorporation power held indirectly

i UNIEg Galipava: ik PR B IR R

2014 2013

—Z-—mF —T-=F

Lee Shing Hong Kong 43.00% 43.00%

Mining
KRR 9

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associate
is set out below:

Total assets wEE
Total liabilities waR
Net assets BEFE
Revenue L¢3

Loss for the year REFEEE

Annual Report 2013-14

(b)

(d)

REEFHFRBEEERAR ([HKIEE]) 2
43.00% Bt - M AR IRE BT H BN R B
XERAT((EMNKEEE]) (HHEEHHEM
BIRABRARAE) 2 D ROAHE

T —FtA=RA ARAREZERENE
RETAMALTMACERMBERERAA (&
Z]) (ABA [ RBEAMEER)BRAR D)
BEG VRN Bt ReBEZ S —HEE
ARREHFRERNEE 2 — B HEERE
FREE 4 2 Yk 25 49574 7,120,000 T 1A [ & (k5 Bt 4
REIZEBE| NER - ENE2EN_T——F
+tAZBEBRAZRZBHRERFETE - &
EZATEBEFATBPEHBHRREK B HR
L 7E#1,778,0007T - At - HE-FT—=F=
A=+—BLEFEHARSBENARESHFEEN
[g% o

R-ZZ-—MFE=A=+—H AEEBEQAN
HERSIMT

Principal activities
TEEH

Investment holding of an exclusive
exploration right of vanadium mining
in Guizhou Province, the PRC

B BN B SRR R By IR 2 IR R

REEBERAOPEERHERIMT

Group

EH
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
139,990 141,342
(26,260) (25,708)
113,730 115,634
(2,154) (50,900)
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e B mERNE

24 Prepayments, deposits and other 24 FEFMRIA - RERHEMEW
receivables 18
Group Company
A5 AAR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OFE  ZE—=F ZZE-NF ZZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BET T BETIT

Deposits and receivables in Wig HEZRE R

respect of acquisitions/ FEMRIE (FH5E (a))
disposals (Note (a)) 50,236 52,658 29,997 30,276
Advances to suppliers ) (it FE P #A R 33,917 45,596 - -
Prepaid TRC (Note 11) AR
(BE=E11) - 11,654 - =
Prepaid consultation fee FafTEERE 2 (FiEE (b))
(Note (b)) 10,300 16,480 10,300 16,480
Amounts due from FEU = Z AR R FRIE
substantial shareholders (HF3E 11 K ()
(Note 11 and (c)) 5,450 - 5,450 -
Other receivables (Note (c)) H b pEU R
GEIG)) 31,867 32,426 8,062 4,125
131,770 158,814 53,809 50,881
Less: Provision for R ERE
impairment (Note (d)) (Pf3E(d)) (55,825) (29,743) - -
75,945 129,071 53,809 50,881
Less: Amount shown under & : IJERBIEEE
non-current assets Zigllax:l (28,010) (16,255) (24,126) (10,300)
Amount shown under MENEEET
current assets Frol & 58 47,935 112,816 29,683 40,581
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e B mRNE

24 Prepayments, deposits and other 24 FEFRIA - REREMEWK
receivables (continued) I8 (%)
Notes: BfaE :
(a) The amounts mainly comprise the following: (a) ZESEEEBETINER -
(i) In relation to a letter of intent dated 12 May 2010 for the (i) REHPAE-ZT—ZTFAA+=-BARTE

acquisition of 52% participating interests in an oil and gas
exploration and exploitation project in Modamuji Sagin Hailaer
Basin (the “Modamuiji Project”), which has been terminated on
5 January 2012, the Group paid an amount of RMB35,000,000
(approximately HK$39,998,000) as an initial deposit (the
“Deposit”) to an independent third party (the “Third Party”) who
holds 100% participating interests in the Modamuiji Project.

On 31 December 2012, the Group, the Third Party and an
independent third party guarantor (the “Guarantor”) entered into
an agreement pursuant to which the Guarantor undertakes the
settlement on behalf of the Third Party and pledged its 5% equity
interests in another oil and gas exploitation project as a security for
settlement of the entire amount.

In the current year, the Third Party repaid RMB3,000,000
(approximately HK$3,752,000). As at 31 March 2014, the
outstanding balance amounted to RMB24,000,000 (approximately
HK$30,017,000).

On 1 April 2014, the Third Party signed a settlement agreement
with the Group and agreed to settle the outstanding balance
by 24-month by instalments of RMB1,000,000 (approximately
HK$1,251,000) each. A further amount of RMB3,000,000
(approximately HK$3,752,000) has been subsequently settled by
the Third Party.

Given that the Third Party has honored the settlement schedule
and the pledged security by the Guarantor, management is of
the view that no further impairment is recognised as at 31 March
2014.
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FAUER Modamuji Sagin Hailaer BasinZ.
ARRRARBFERFAEER ([EEAR
HTHEB] R=T—-F—ARHETE)
Zo2% 2EERZEAE AREER
BUE=H(E=7] BREEEAS
JHE Z2100.00% 2 HiEm) T EBAR
# 35,000,000 7T (497 39,998,000 7T.)
EREERS ([RE)) -

R-E——#F#+-_A=+—H A&
CEZAR—RBYE=FERA
(THERAD T — D103 - Bt - BR
ABERRE=ZFBELERER S —
JRRENRIAE 2 5% kA - (ERBEEER
RIBZ R -

REAFEE E=ZFEXHARYE
3,000,000 7T ( %) 7 #3,752,0007¢ ) ©
R-ZT—NE=A=+—0" ' KxHE
4 8% 2 A R #24,000,000 7T ( 49 75 1
30,017,0007%) ©

R-ZT—MEMA—F - F=FEAK
SEEEEGE YRBKR=-TM
8 A& A ARH1,000,0007 (474
1,251,0007T ) 7 8 75 304508 4 oK 6 38
Ethe BEZHERBEBREARYE
3,000,000 7T (4974 # 3,752,000 7T) °

ERE=FEARBELRHI RERA
EHAERER EEBRRAR_-F
—mE=ZA=T—HLERERE LR
E o
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e B mERNE

24 Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

()

The amounts mainly comprise the following: (continued)

(i) A consideration receivable from a sub-contractor of chemical
products segment of HK$8,137,000 (2013: HK$10,280,000)
relating to the disposal of a business as set out in Note 39 (b).

(iii) The balance represents the receivable balance due from a non-
controlling shareholder of Topact Holdings Limited (“Topact”) in
respect of certain excluded assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$12,102,000 (2013: HK$12,102,000). The Group has
recognised a full provision for impairment of HK$12,102,000
(2013: Nil) during the year as the Board of Directors considered
the recovery of the entire amount may not be probable. Details of
which are set out in Note 38.

The amount represents prepaid consultation fees of HK$10,300,000
(2013: HK$16,480,000). On 29 November 2012, the Group entered into a
service agreement with an external consultant for the provision of business
development strategies and advisory services (the “Service Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Service Agreement, the Group should grant to the external
consultant a total of 350,000,000 warrants conferring to subscribe up to
HK$63,000,000 for new ordinary shares of the Company during a period
of 33 months commencing from the date 3 months from the date of issue
at an exercise price of HK$0.18 per share. The transaction was accounted
for a share-based payment in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”. The fair value of the warrants amounted to HK$18,540,000
was credited to share-based payment reserve. During the year ended 31
March 2014, share-based payment expense of HK$6,180,000 (2013:
HK$2,060,000) (Note 9) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

24

FRNFIR ~ #1E REAMEER
I8 (%)

BieE : (4%)

(a)

(b)
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ZESBETERETIER : (B)

(ii) B —IEE R (KT RE39(b) FTEL)
BURIETEREBI B2 EEZRE
7 #68,137,000L( =T — =4 : B
10,280,000 7T) °

(iii) ERERETHRIEERBELS
#12,102,0000( =T — = F : B
12,102,000 7T ) F& 4 JE 12 AR A% 3R Topact
Holdings Limited ([Topact]) & &4
HiER c ARERERATARERE 2
BeHE MAEEERFANREBYE
12,102,000 0 (=T — =4 : &) ERE
RS o SEEENMIEE38 o

% TR I8 15 TE < B R & 7% 16 10,300,000 T ( = F
— =% : #%16,480,0000) c RZT—=F
+—AZ=+hB B AEEE—ZINEER IR E
TSR R B R BB R AR IS 5T S — 17 BR A5 1k ([ AR
Bk l) - RERBHZ - ADRIERTINEE
f&4& #£ 350,000,000 17 R AR 7 - °] B RARAEE
B{TAHE3EA 2 BB 338 A LA
RERABE0ISTZITHEERBEARAIKSE
# 63,000,000 T Z ¥ EER - ZR S HRBEE
TSR LRI 2 5% [ LARRIA 4 2 5018 | ABR
FIVELARR D A 2 5RIE - SRARIERE 2 DT EBYE
18,540,000 7T T35t ALARR (3 3 5 2 SRIE M © B
E-T-ME=ZA=F+—AILEE - UROIZH
ZHRIBERX A 6,180,000 T (=B — =4 : B
2,060,000 7T) (Ffi 7 9) ThtR& W as R NFERR ©

FEEHREER 2B RBREREE -

—ECE-NFEFERE



Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Stateménts

e B mRNE

24 Prepayments, deposits and other 24
receivables (continued)

Notes (Continued):

(d) Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows:
At beginning of the year RER)
Recognition of impairment losses (Note 6) R ERTE (it 6)
Written off i

At end of the year REH

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised an
impairment losses totalling HK$31,048,000 (2013: HK$9,590,000) on
the deposits and receivables for the acquisitions/disposals amounted
to HK$12,102,000 (2013: Nil), advances to suppliers amounted to
HK$16,832,000 (2013: 9,443,000), and other receivables amounted to
HK$2,114,000 (2013: HK$147,000) after assessing the recoverability of
these balances.

(e) The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables net
of impairment are denominated in the following currencies:

FRNFIR ~ 1 REAMBIER
I8 (%)

=

BieE : (4%)

(d) RERHEBNT

Group

FEE
2014 2013
—E—ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BET T
29,743 20,300
31,048 9,590
(4,966) (147)
55,825 29,743

HE-_T-—NE=A=+—HALLEE FA&£H
RN ZSEH 2 REEERES R A
B, & 2 EUGRIE A% 12,102,000 T (=F
— = ) - MR 2 BREH 16,832,000
(=T —=%: #%9,443,0007T) « RHA
FEURFRIBBHE 2,114,000 (=T — =4 : B
147,0007T) HER IR ERTIR S S8 131,048,000 7T
ZE =4 : #%09,590,0007T) ©

(e) BNFOR - 2E kA M EREZ REE (N
BE) THE T EHEHE

Group Company
REH LS
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F —E-MF —T—=

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BET T BT
HK$ bt 12,670 22,125 23,573 19,767
us$ E 4,173 34,480 6 838
RMB AR 57,242 69,949 29,996 30,276
Others HAl 1,860 2,517 234 -
75,945 129,071 53,809 50,881
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25 Other financial assets

Other financial assets of the Group comprised of the

followings:

Held-for-trading investments:

FHEREENRE -

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong R & _E M IEARE 5

Available-for-sale investments:
Unlisted equity investment, at cost
— Less: Provision for impairment

Listed equity securities
in Hong Kong (Note (a))
Unlisted debt securities (Note (b))

Less: amount shown under
non-current assets

Amount shown under current assets

Market value of listed securities

AHHERE
FLEMBRAKRE - KA
R OREEE

RES LR
&z (M @)
JEEmERES (5 (b))

B ERBEERT
eielpNe

MEBEER TR ER

EHhRESZmE

25

HttEmERE

AEEHEMERMEEBENATRIEA

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
162 145
5,837 5,837
(5,837) (5,837)
74,314 52,980
5,003 4,122
79,317 57,102
79,479 57,247
(74,314) (57,102)
5,165 145
74,476 53,125
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25 Other financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets are denominated in the following

currencies:

HK$ it
RMB ARHE
Notes:

The listed equity security represents the Group'’s long-term investment
of 19.65% equity interest in Gold Tat. It is measured at fair value with
reference to the bid prices on the Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the amount represents unlisted debt securities of
RMB4,000,000 (approximately HK$5,003,000) purchased from certain
financial institutions. It is measured at fair value with reference to the
valuation provided by the respective financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2013, the amount represented the Group's subscription of
RMB3,200,000 (approximately HK$4,122,000) 10.50% senior notes due
in 2016 issued by a company listed on the Stock Exchange. On 17 October
2013, the Group disposed of the entire investment at a cash consideration
of RMB3,304,000 (approximately HK$4,170,000) and recognised gains on
disposals of HK$367,000 in the consolidated income statement (Note 6).

25

Hit e mEE (&)

AT ERHEN LM S REE

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF =5
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
74,476 53,125
5,003 4,122
79,479 57,247

(b)
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ERBRARSERAREREE19.65% RENK
HKE - ENE2ER—_F-—NF=A=+—H
HEH Rz EANBREAFEETE °

R-ZT—WNME=A=+—8 Z2SLEER
ETCHMEBRENELITEEIEAARE
4,000,000 7T (477%# 5,003,000 7T) « HTh#E2%E
ELMEBAIRE 2 (HMERKRATEETE °

R-ZE—=F=A=+—H0 ' ZeB8ELEER
i A R # 3,200,000 7T ( 4974 % 4,122,000 7T )
— KR ETARETZ10.50% R =T —R
FHHELEEE - R_T—=F+A++H "
AR AR € KB AR 3,304,000 7T (478 #
4,170,000 7T) & 2 IR E I B bR & W K b
R & K5 367,000 7T (FiiRE6) ©
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26

27

e B mERNE

Inventories 26 &

Group

TEE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Consumables FEM 3,858 3,705
Raw materials R 8,512 1,401
Finished goods BURK SR 301 564
12,671 5,670

The cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to
HK$947,363,000 (2013: HK$936,637,000).

Trade receivables 27
Trade receivables E Z ENRIE
Less: Provision for impairment R R E R (PR (d))
(Note (d))
Notes:
(@ Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit

assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits of customer. The management considers adequate
allowance has been made at end of the year. Balances which are neither
past due nor impaired are all receivable from customers with good
historical repayment records and good credit quality.

(b) Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90 days) from
the date of invoicing.

RAEMAYNFERA ABE 947,363,000
TT(ZF—=4%F : %% 936,637,0007T) °

B 5 EWFTE

Group

KEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
117,337 40,074
(3,799) (2,666)
113,538 37,408

(b)

REMERFEFH - ARERERAREET
EHRRNEEERPZEFEERRRERFPEE
REE - EEEBRANFERDIEL RERME - BER
BEATMEREZ SR AR E AERIFEAEER
MERRIFEREERI TP ZBKRE -

HABUA AR EEANEH=tAZA+A
(—Z—=F: =tAEA+A) RS-
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. 5 =] Fon =
27 Trade receivables (continued) 27 B FEWFIE (&)
Notes: (continued) B - (%)
(0 Aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date net of (c) B 5 RUGRIE (INRIRE) RIBER R B 2 Rk D
impairment is as follows: AT -
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Less than 1 month TR—fEA 9,588 12,101
1 month to 3 months —EARAE=EA 98,035 17,284
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #B#B={EAEBTE—F 5,202 4,138
Over 1 year Bl —F 713 3,885
113,538 37,408
(d) Movements in the provision for impairment during the year are as follows: (d) FRN - RERBEZBHOT
Group
REH
2014 2013
—E-QmF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
At beginning of the year RE 2,666 6,866
Recognition/(reversal) of R/ (B REKE
impairment losses (Note 6) (7 6) 1,129 (4,368)
Exchange realignment Rk 4 168
At end of the year RER 3,799 2,666
(e) Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with an (e) AEEBEZERBFELRBDEROAERBE
aggregate carrying amount of HK$20,519,000 (2013: HK$10,938,000), 20,519,000 7T( =T —=4F : %% 10,938,000 7T)
which are past due at end of the year for which the Group has not BERFEREBHNBERER  MASETEREH
provided for any impairment as there has not been a significant change in EREMRERE EBAzEERrEE RS
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group ) - BFRIBMWARBAIME - KEBEDERZE
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Aging analysis of trade HEHRFAETAERR ERBRETERENES
receivables based on due date which are past due but not impaired is as FEMGIRR IR EIE B B9 BRI DATAA T ¢
follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-NmF —EB—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month Tr—1EA 3,705 3,183
1 month to 3 months —@ARAZE=@A 14,532 2,008
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #B#=1{EAEBFE—F 1,569 5,307
Over 1 year HBiR—F 713 440
20,519 10,938
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27 Trade receivables (continued) 27 BZEWNIE(E)
Notes: (continued) B - (%)
() The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the (f) B P RGRIEZ BREE T A TS S EHE

following currencies:

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-nmE 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$ ks 17,119 17,427
Us$ 27T 72,313 8,423
RMB ARH 19,799 9,066
Others Hits 4,307 2,492
113,538 37,408
(9) As at 31 March 2014, the Group's trade receivables with an aggregate (9) RZZ—WF=A=+—H8 A&EEEHL
carrying value of HK$89,432,000 (2013: HK$25,850,000) were pledged to BERB189,432000L( —T—=4: B
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 32(d)(3)). 25,850,0007T) 2 & 5 W IEE /EHE A - LAER
BETASEZHF7EE (I 32(d)3)) °
28 Derivative financial instruments 28 THEE€mIA
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=%
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE 8&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT IT BT
Derivative financial REEEZ
instruments PTESBTIA
held-for-trading:
Interest rate swaps A2 5 (FiT3E (a)
(Note (a)) - 1,563 65 1,195
Foreign currency forward ISR RS 49 (B3 (b))
contracts (Note (b)) 746 36,503 116 7,802
Total derivative TEEBMT AR
financial instruments 746 38,066 181 8,997
The derivative financial instruments are held-for-trading TESMTADFHEEERR - NFR -
purposes. The fair values of interest rate swaps and foreign MEEHRIMEERS LR T ED B
currency forward contracts at end of the year are provided by FHRITIRM -

the counterparty banks.
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28 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Interest rate swaps

At 31 March 2014, the fixed interest rates vary from
2.50% to 3.00% (2013: 0.21% to 3.00%), and the main
floating rate is HIBOR. Loss recognised on the changes
in fair value of the interest rate swaps during the year
amounted to HK$565,000 (2013: Gain HK$3,888,000).

Foreign currency forward contracts

Loss recognised on the changes in fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts during the year
amounted to HK$28,220,000 (2013: HK$6,888,000).

The carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments
are denominated in US$.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of the derivative financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

28

PTEEM I A (@)

(a)

4= 5

R-E—WE=A=+—0 " BES
RIE250% E3.00% (—T—=4F:
0.21% £3.00%) 2 EEE) - MEE
FEFEBEBIRITRZERE - RF
RBLF R 2 ) A A E B FER A
B 5B 565000 (=T —=4F:
W25 A8 % 3,888,000 7T) °

HNES IR BRA 4T
RERRINE RIS R T EE S
R A E1E A8 1 28,220,000 7T (=
T =14 : #%6,888,0007T) °
PTHESRT A RAENUETTE -
REEBHAZNSAEERR AR

AMBRARNITL LA BAED
AFE -
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29 Cash and bank balances 29 BERBITEER
Group Company
KEE PN/ |
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—mEF —T—=F CZZZE—NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAERR 134,665 110,499 63,201 33,225
Less: Restricted bank deposits J& : B iEHRITIFR
(Note 32(d)(2)) (B 5E 32(d)(2)) (30,033) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents R& MBS EHEEH 104,632 110,499 63,201 33,225
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are W& RIRITA SRR EREE T LA T oI S5t
denominated in the following currencies: 18
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE  —2—=F ZEB-OF —ZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT BT BT IT

HK$ b 67,489 85,969 63,178 33,225
us$ EV 31,257 5,440 - —
RMB AR 34,293 18,771 23 —
Others Hih 1,626 319 - —

134,665 110,499 63,201 33,225
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=
30 Trade payables 30 BEFENFIE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade payables 25 EMNFIE 101,946 47,104
Bills payables ANES 26,590 16,972
128,536 64,076
Notes: BT -
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills payables presented (a) RTABSENFIERENZEBERFRIZERH
based on the invoice date and date of the bills at end of the year. HREE B2 Z RO
Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: B S ENREZ R DITAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Less than 1 month TR—@A 76,872 38,385
1 month to 3 months —ERAE=@A 19,936 1,672
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #BiB={AABFE—F 5,060 6,969
Over 1 year BiR—F 78 78
101,946 47,104
Aging analysis of bills payables is as follows: BEREEZERSTOT -
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—EA 3,580 1,418
1 month to 3 months —@ARAZE=@A 23,010 15,554
26,590 16,972
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30 Trade payables (continued) 30 BFENFIE @)
Notes: (continued) BaE : (48)
(b) The carrying amounts of trade and bill payables are denominated in the (b) BHRNRARENZRZREETIATIEE
following currencies: FHE :
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—-E —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B TIT
HK$ ok - 295
us$ ES 103,936 21,495
RMB AREE 24,600 42,286
128,536 64,076
31 Accruals and other payables 31 EstRIERHAEN IR
Group Company
AEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—mEF —T—=F CZZEZE—NF —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Consideration BB

payables 6,254 6,245 - =
Receipts in advance B FRIE 2,427 7,415 - -
Construction cost FERTEERR AR

payables 13,486 12,743 - -
Other payables H At fE( K1 30,696 16,085 14,333 4,445

52,863 42,488 14,333 4,445
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31 Accruals and other payables (continued) 31 FERTREUE N H B FOE (8)
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are JRE 5t FRIE K H At JE AN SR I R BRE(E T A T
denominated in the following currencies: FEEEHE -

Group Company
TEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NEF —T—=F C—ZE—NF —T—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

HK$ B 16,129 5,224 14,191 4,445
us$ EV 188 5,734 142 -
RMB AR 32,649 31,236 - —
Others Eith 3,897 294 - -
52,863 42,488 14,333 4,445
32 Bank borrowings 32 RITEE

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank loans RITER 40,000 27,497
Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,975 9,991
48,975 37,488
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32 Bank borrowings (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group's bank borrowings are payable
within 1 year.

Bank loans and overdrafts contain a repayment on demand clause which
enables the bank to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire
balance was classified under current liabilities as at 31 March 2014 and
2013.

As at 31 March 2014, the bank loans and overdrafts are interest-bearing
with variable rate at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis
points per annum. The effective interest rate for the year is 3.34% (2013:
3.39%). The borrowings are repayable in a lump sum payment upon
maturity in accordance with the terms set out in the respective banking
facility letters.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group pledged the following assets to secure
the Group’s bank borrowings and trading facilities:

(1) corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount;

(2) Fixed deposit placed with a bank for the bank borrowings and
trading facilities utilised. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has
maintained a fixed deposit of US$3,872,000 (approximately
HK$30,033,000) (2013: Nil) for the aforesaid purpose;

(3) trade receivables to the extent of carrying amount of
HK$89,432,000 (2013: HK$25,850,000);

(4) 51.00% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Northeast
Qil (China) Development Company Limited, as a register of all
monies first share charge. On 28 March 2014, the Group accepted
the renewal bank facilities offer to release the share charge. The
administrative procedures of releasing the share charge is being
proceeded; and

(5) the investment properties with carrying value of HK$24,375,000

(2013: HK$24,888,000) (Note 19).

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings and overdrafts are
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

(b)

(d)
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R-E-—MER-_T—=F£=A=+—H &%
BRITEREAR —FRHEE -

RITER KRB BB RITA 2T ZIRERME
BIER A RZT—WNFR=-_T—=F=A
=+—B 2HEHRIARDEMS -

RZF-—NFE=A=+—H ' REEFEZRT
BERREX RESRITAEREMEFETE
HHOANFEE - FAEBENER334% (=
T—=%:339%) - EREDREBRZRTE
B R 2 RN B HAR — BT ©

R-BE-—WE=A=+—0  AEEEEF T
BE - ERAEBIRITIHEERE S EEMER :

(1) ARERERSRIEL 2 RFHER

) B & 7R EF RN —MRTT - AER
TEERESGEERE - R-F—W
FZA=+—H AEEHRAMAE D
45 E HTF 3X03,872,000 3 T (4175 #
30,033,000 L) (ZFE—=4 : &) ;

3) BRI (B 3= 5 %5 89,432,000 0 (ZF — =
£ : 7% 25,850,0007T ) #) E 5 FE UK
I8

(4) REEMBRRRILAR(FE)ERE
RAFZ51.00% KA, (ER—IBE
BETH2RBERERRC R-F—N
F=ZRAZ+N\AB - AEEERENRIT
BMERDE  BRROHIAE - MERIRH A
FETTBIR P ETESIEF ¢ R

(5) BRE (B A5 % 24,375,0000 (=T — =
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HEHENFERE -

—ECE-NFEFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Share capital

e B HRRNE

33 I’&A

Number of shares

Share capital

BRHEE R
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MEF —T-=f —E-MF —T-=Ff
Note ‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 T FHx BET T ok
Ordinary shares of BREEBE0.01TH
HK$0.01 each Tk
Authorised: ERE
At beginning and end REFREFLL
of the year 8,000,000 8,000,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRHR :
At beginning of the year ~ R&4] 4,600,624 4,129,952 46,006 41,299
Exercise of share options {758 & (a) - 900 - 9
Placement of new shares  FR&E# R (b) - 312,500 - 3,125
Issue of new shares G )EUNG
for acquisition of BATETIR D
subsidiaries 38 - 157,272 - 1,573
At end of the year RELR 4,600,624 4,600,624 46,006 46,006

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at shareholders’ meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company allotted and issued
900,000 shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at the exercise price at HK$0.198
as a result of the exercise of share options.

On 9 August 2012, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
437,500,000 new shares at the price of HK$0.16 per placing share (the
“placing price”). On 12 October 2012, a total of 312,500,000 new shares
were successfully placed at the placing price. Accordingly, 312,500,000
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a premium of HK$0.15 each.
The premium on issue of shares of approximately HK$45,191,000, net
of transaction cost of approximately HK$ 1,684,000, was credited to the
share premium account. These shares rank pari pasu in all respects with
the existing shares.

TRBRFAEAGRERTREIROEE -
YTERNRARABRRAGLZEER—F
HRERE o PTA B BN AR B R R R
AEZARZER -

(a) REE-T—=F=-A=+—"HLEE  AQ"
PR97 {50 B8 P DA 3R € 42 5 45 0.198 T 2 1T 1 (B R
B K% F17900,000/ F R EEE0.01 T2 IR1A °

(b) R-ZZE——FN\ANB KAAAHARENRET
Y—-HREHE Bt RERBERERER
&R H BB I6L 2 BR(TEREE]) RE
437,500,000 R ARA - R=T——F+A+=
B+ 43£312,500,000 i A& 15 B A Ih iR e & &
B2 o E Ut + 312,500,000 B8 & A% % 0.01 7T 2
B 15 ThiR G A ARE 0.15 T 2R BEAT o BT
2w BHE 45,191,000 7T (B R B AR A KB
# 1,684,000 7T) Jhat ABR IR ERR - ZERMHK
FHEER ARG ZH RFHAL o
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On 21 June 2013, a special resolution was passed on the annual general meeting
to approve the reduction of the amount of approximately HK$1,331,596,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company towards
offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company. The reduction of share
premium complied with the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

34 Reserves 34 f#fE
Company
A7
Share-based
Share Others payment Accumulated
premium reserves reserve losses Total
DRBZA
BRAEE At NN i FR 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT RETT BETT RETT RETT
At 1 April 2012 W-E-—#mA-H 1,751,626 - 46,897 (1,162,571) 635,952
Loss for the year TEREE - = = (171,539) (171,539)
Recognition of equity-settled  BEBMARALEARR
share-based payments SLp Y - - 32,940 - 32,940
Issue of new shares for FUERBAR
acquisition of subsidlaries BoRG 24,032 - - - 24,032
Exercise of share options fIfeRafE 209 - (40) - 169
Placement of new shares &R 45,191 - - - 45,191
Lapse of share options ERERN - - (2,514) 2,514 -
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%
ZA=1-H 1,821,058 - 71,283 (1,331,59%) 566,745
Loss for the year TERNER - - - (45,396) (45,396)
Recognition of equity-settled  BEBMARALEARR
share-based payments SLp Y - - 20,040 - 20,040
Set-off against accumulated  HEHZHER (i)
osses (Note) (1,331,59) - - 1,331,596 -
Lapse of share options SRR - - (20,048) 20,048 -
Capital contributions RERRLHE
from shareholders - 5,450 - - 5,450
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mE
ZA=1-H 489,462 5,450 71,215 (25,348) 546,839
Note: BT -

RZZE—=FX "A=+—8 RREBEAE LBE—
T RF Bl R 5 2R DA LA MRS 2 B AR 17 025 (8 AR BR AR B
1,331,596,000 ST AL $H AR 12 B RTS8 o BRI R BHEIR
HEHSREAERNERTE(—AA—FE=FE
Bl R —RIEET) ©
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The Company has a share option scheme for eligible directors
and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013,
a new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
has been approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company. The share option scheme approved by the
shareholders on 21 October 2002 has expired on 21 October
2012 (the “Expired Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity,
advisor, consultant, serial provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Company and its subsidiaries
(including any directors of the Group), the grant of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company representing up to
a maximum of 10% of the shares issue as at 24 June 2013
(excluding shares issued on exercise of options under the Share
Option Scheme).

The Company also issued non-listed warrants to the Honorary
Chairman of the Company in prior years, to an external
consultant in respect of consultation services received on 29
November 2012 (Note 24(b)), and to certain independent third
parties on 25 October 2013 (Note 8).

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised net
aggregate share-based payment expenses of HK$6,180,000
(2013: HK$2,060,000) and HK$16,340,000 (2013: Nil) in
relation to the non-listed warrants issued to an external
consultant and certain independent third parties respectively.
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'~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Details of the Company’s share options granted under the
Expired Scheme and non-listed warrants outstanding and their

e B mERNE

35 Share-based payments (continued)

movements during the year are as follows:

Share options

Bhi

Executive directors

g%

Independent
non-executive directors

BUFHTES

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

Date of
grant

RiRS

13 August 2004
“ITE
NAtZA

24 May 2012
- 3
EA-tmA

28 March 2012
E-of
=A=t/\B

Exercisable Exercise
period price
s i

13 August HK$0.251
W41 BEOBIT
August 2014

“ETRENA

+=R%

5[

MNAtZH

1uy2012t0  HK$0.198
27 March 2015 #0198
-

tA-RZ

i

=A=ttH

1uly2012t0  HK$0.198
27 March 2014 %%0.1987
“E-f

tA-A%

ZE-]E

AR

35 BAREDSZAY 250 ()

RER - AR R A AT TERBRE (RE
EEMAEET) RIE LT RIRAEE 2 B
REZEMT :

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-RESA=T-ALEE
Asat  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Forfeited Asat
1 April during during during during 31 March
213 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2014

8-z # # i BoocE-me
mE-B  EAEN  ERGE  FAAN  EANK ZAZt-B
'000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 '000

T R & T T T

100 = = = = 100
200,000 - - - - 200,000
11,400 - - (11,400) = -
211,500 = - (11.400) - 200,100
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e B HRRNE

35 Share-based payments (continued) 35 LAY A ZFIE (#)

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-ME=R=1-ALEE

Asat  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Forfeited Asat

Date of Exercisable Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
grant period price 213 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2014
it it

o8-cF it R R B ZE-pF

RiHRH ik ik WA-B  EARE  EAME EAAN FaRb ZA=t-R
000 000 '000 '000 000 000

T R T T T T

Non-listed warrants

EAEL Y
Honorary Chairman 21 June 2010 Aune2010to  HK$1.35 250,000 - - (250,000) - -
RELR 5-%F 0Jne203  EE1357
VA ; I = B iy
=1 G
“E-=f%
~AZTA
3 June 2011 3 June 2011 to HKS$0.45 200,000 - - - - 200,000
Ef 2ne 2014 AM045T
A=A ZE——EXA
ZHE-E-mF
~AZA
Consultant 29 November 2012 1 March 2013t0 HKS0.180 350,000 - - - - 350,000
G “E-F B November 2015 BH
t-A=tAR ZE-ZEZR 01801
-BE-%-1f
+-B=tNH
Independent third parties 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 HK$0.1526 - 370,000 - - - 370,000
L ) o 1024 October 2016 B
ti-taR  -E-ck 0152670
+AZTRAZ
St
+A=tmA
800,000 370,000 - (250,000) - 920,000
1,011,500 370,000 - (261,400) - 1,120,100
Exercisable at end of the year
REETAR 1,120,100
Weighted average exercise price
METSAER 0674 0.153 - 1300 - 0222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share options
Bhe

Executive directors

Y783

Independent non-executive
directors

BHITES

Employees

&

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

e B mERNE

Date of
grant

st

13 August 2004
Z2EmE)\AT=H

29 Apr 2009
ZSENEMAZTAR

28 March 2012
Z5-ZE=RZ)\A

24 May 2012
“E-CERACTOA

28 March 2012
)

28 March 2012
e i

35 Share-based payments (continued)

Erercisable
period

fifes

13 August 2004 to

12 August 2014

“TEMENATZRE
ZZ-mENATZH

29 Apil 2009 o

28 Aprl 2012

“ETNEMA-thAE
ZE-ZEMAZT/\A

1y 20120

27 March 2013

Z5-ZFtA-RAE
“T-ZEZA-14H

11Uy 201210

27 March 2015

Z5-ZFtA-AR
“T-REZA-t4H

11Uy 2012to

27 March 2014

FCELA-BE
ZR-REZAZT4A

1uly 201210

27 March 2013

TRCECA-BE
“5-=F=A- 1A

35 BAREDSZAY 250 ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-R-ZESAzr-HIER

Asat  Granted  Exerclsed Lapsed ~ Forfeited Asat

Erercise 1 Apri during during during during 31 March

price 010 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 013

R R

-3 R R R B IEZE

fikE  BA-A  ERRL  ERGR AR FARR ZR=r-R

000 000 000 000 000 000

Tk T Th Th Th Th

HK$0.25¢1 100 = = = - 100
AE051 T

HK$0.206 216 - - (216) - -
AB0.2067

HK$0.198 7,600 - - (7.600) - -
AB0.1987

HK$0.198 - 200000 - - - 200,000
AH0.198T

HKS0.198 11,400 - - - - 11,400
E5019%7

HKS0.198 48,800 = (900)  (47,900) = =
E5019%7

08116 200,000 (900)  (35,716) = 211,500
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e B HRRNE

35 Share-based payments (continued)

Non-listed warrants
FLmRhER
Honorary Chairman
RBIR

Consultant
Eff

Exercisable at end of the year

RERATE

Weighted average exercise price

ME¥HER

No share option was exercised during the year ended 31
March 2014. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the weighted
average closing share price at the date of exercise for the share
options was HK$0.219.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme

Date of
grant

RiHAS

21 June 2010
“5-%F

~AZT-A

3 June 2011
2-f
~AZH

29 November 2012

—F_-

P S

+-B=thA

during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Exercisable
period

1%

21 June 2010 to

20 June 2013

“T-EE5
Zt-BZ
23z
AAZTH

3 June 2011 o

2 June 2014
Z5—E5A

SREZE-IF

~NAZH

1 March 2013 10
28 Novernber 2015

E-ck
=A-B%
“T-1f

T-A=t/\R

35 LABRD AT 2 FRIE (@)

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BEE-cE-f=T-ALER

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at

Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
price 2012 the year the year the year the year 2013
i3 i3

3 3 3 3 B %-=F

ik WA-A  EARE  EROR EMRR R ZA=1-8
000 000 000 000 000 000

o R TR TR TR TH

HKS1.35 250,000 - - - - 250,000
%1357

HKS0.45 200,000 - - - - 200,000
AE045T

HK$0.180 - 350,000 = - - 350,000
BE0180T

450,000 350,000 = = - 800,000

518116 550,000 ©00)  (55716) - 1,011,500

1,011,500

0851 0187 0198 0198 = 0526

HE_Z-—-ME=A=1+—RHILtEEHE
TEERE - BE_T—=F=A=1+—
HIEFE - BIRETE BB 2 NEEEK
MEABE0.2197T °

BHEZZ-—MNME=A=+—HILtFE  #
BRI RS &R H B AE -
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36 Deferred income tax 36 EEFTSH

The net movements in the deferred income tax are as follows: FEFMBHEE)FRHEMT

Group
REE
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T FEEEF T
At beginning of the year PREA] (9,322) (3,892)
Credited to consolidated RERE W= RETA
income statement (FfFEE11)
(Note 11) 1,202 719
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEE b B A Al (FI5E38)
(Note 38) - (6,095)
Exchange realignment [ X AR (5) (54)
At end of the year RER (8,125) (9,322)

Deferred income tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax
depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

At beginning of the year

Credited to consolidated
income statement

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 38)

Exchange realignment

At end of the year
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REEF)
NON=X G T N

Yo B Bl 8 2 B (BiY3E 38)

VE 5 S R

RER

RAFERBEFE  BLEMREHEEE
BREERNIEGIRTE R A EEET

m

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—ZE—-F —E—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(10,651) (3,892)
(1,119) (610)
- (6,095)
(5) (54)
(11,775) (10,651)




The deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be recovered
after more than 12 months.

At end of the year, the Group has deductible temporary
differences, including assets impairment and unused tax
losses of HK$287,289,000 (2013: HK$255,005,000) and
HK$263,338,000 (2013: HK$213,792,000) respectively. No
deferred income tax asset has been recognised in relation to
such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Except
for HK$2,321,000 of deferred income tax asset has been
recognised in relation to unused tax losses, no deferred income
tax asset has been recognised on the remaining tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred income tax assets mainly represent tax losses
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

At beginning of the year A

Credited to consolidated FTAGRE =R
income statement

At end of the year JINGS

The unrecognised tax losses amounting to HK$176,946,000
(2013: HK$154,261,000) can be carried forward indefinitely
and the remaining HK$53,762,000 (2013: HK$36,051,000)
and HK$32,630,000 (2013: HK$23,480,000) will expire in
2019 (2013: 2018) and 2024 (2013: 2023) respectively.
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BEERERNADAFEEIES A
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HK$'000

BT

1,329

1,329
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN ETE Y

37 Bonds 37 &%

Unsecured bonds wholly payable AR FEBEZNH
after 5 years ERRES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued
bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$80,000,000 to
several independent third parties with coupon rates ranged
from 5.00% to 5.71%, payable in 7 years from the respective
issue dates. The aggregate carrying amounts of the loans are
HK$52,576,000 as at 31 March 2014, which approximate their
fair values. The fair values are determined using the expected
future payments discounted at effective interest rates ranged
from 8.97% to 12.52% prevailing at the year ended and are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bonds are denominated
in HK$ and approximate their fair values.

Group and Company
KEBRAAF
2014 2013
—E—-EF —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
52,576 =

HE-_ZT-—NF=A=+—HILEE"
AARBETBILBE = HTARLBE
80,000,000 T2 &% + ZEEENF5.00%
£571% REZETHABEFELFRAE
e RZBE—WE=ZA=+—0  EXZ
4 BRI &8 % 52,576,000 70 © EHEAF
ERE - AFEDERARFRBTERT
RN F8.97% & 12.52% 7 IR #) 78 8 & 5K
NRMERE - WERATFEEREIREE
Wc

AEBEES ZREET BB EIL EE
RFERE
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Acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2013 was as follows:

On 15 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
("Vendor”) to acquire approximately 46.77% equity interests
in Topact for a consideration of US$3,600,000 (approximately
HK$27,900,000). The Group shall pay the consideration to the
Vendor by procuring the allotment and issue of 157,271,702
new ordinary shares (Note 33) of the Company to the Vendor
at issue price of approximately HK$0.1774 per share. Topact
and its subsidiary (together, the “Topact Group”), are
principally engaged in the provision of exploration drilling in
Kazakhstan. Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement,
all assets and liabilities, except for the property, plant and
equipment, of the Topact Group were undertaken by the
Vendor and therefore, were excluded from the acquisition
transaction and accounted for as a receivable of approximately
HK$12,102,000 (Note 24(a)(iii)). Details of the acquisition were
as follows:

Consideration satisfied PAB TR 2T 2 RE
in issue of new shares

Recognised amounts of FTIEE 2 PT BRI & E T B
identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed:

Property, plant and

equipment (Note 17)

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 36) EEHIEE A (5T 36)
Non-controlling interests EElligr 2

Total identifiable net assets AHEEFERS

Discount on acquisition (Note 6) Wikg 2 iz (i3t 6)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WREMES 2 REMEFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BBz R RS EEER

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013-14

AEABZERRER

W B RS (17

HE_T—=F=A=+—RHILFE¥E
HFEART

RZZE——F+—A+HA  AEEHE—F
BUE=F(ERDFIN—HEERZ U
& 3,600,000 2= 7T (K97 % 27,900,000 7T )
U8 Topact 4146.77 % 2 B&HE  ZNEE 5 7E
TRAEABRABIE 01774 T2 39TB » [AIE
T BC 3 K 3817 157,271,702 AR RI3T 38
A& (B 5E 33) AZAREFE T © Topact &
HIBAE (458 [Topact £@ ) HEZER
MRiER MBS R EEIREH K - BIRE
Fihk  Topact M2 FIEEEREBE (Y
¥ - BB RBBERIN HBREF AL - BT
BIEEWRER S WIM ARSI R GRIB L7
#12,102,000 7T (P 5E 24(a) (i) © WabE 2 5F
BT ¢

HK$'000
BETT

62,832
(6,095)
(29,176)

27,561
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The fair value of the 157,271,702 ordinary shares issued as
the consideration paid for Topact amounted to approximately
HK$25,605,000 which was based on the published share price
on 27 November 2012 and net of new shares issuance cost.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement
since 27 November 2012 contributed by Topact was
HK$2,703,000. Topact also contributed loss of HK$2,328,000
over the same period.

Had Topact been consolidated from 1 April 2012, the
consolidated income statement would show pro-forma
revenue of HK$38,744,000 and profit of HK$3,733,000.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15
November 2012, the Vendor is required to reimburse
the Group if Topact is unable to achieve a specific profit
requirement for each of the years ended 31 December 2013,
and ending 31 December 2014 and 2015. The potential
undiscounted amount of all future reimbursements that the
Group could receive from the Vendor under this agreement
ranged from zero to HK$28,062,000.
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{ERF Topact FTZ SR {E2 157,271,702 %
BETE MR A FEL BB 25,605,000
T EBRER-_ZE——F+—HA=-++

P 2 B AB N HI R 37 AR 10 B 1T K AN 14 B

=

~

BT —&+—A=-t+tHRIAL
AU ZER ZTopactE R 2 WA BB
2,703,000 7T ° Topact JiiA EIHRE £ E518 7
# 2,328,000 7T °

WE—E——FWA—HETopactina
ARR - BlAR & W as R i85 7R e 2 e 5 1
38,744,000 7T K jm A7 # 3,733,000 7T ©

REAPRA-ZT——F+—-—B+HANE
Ei# 0 fMTopact REXRBE—T—=F
ToA=St - HUEFERBE-Z—WF
M—E-—hFE+_A=1T—HILFERF
ERRERENENR  AIEHARAEEE
HAE - AEEREHEAEED WEZ
FERRENRBZEERTRESEN T
T Z 7 28,062,000 7T ©
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(a)

(b)
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
entered into sale and purchase agreements with
independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) to dispose
of its entire controlling interests in certain subsidiaries,
mainly representing China Oil Resources Company
Limited, which is the immediate holding company of
PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Limited. Total consideration
paid approximated HK$5,425,000. Aggregated gains
on disposals of subsidiaries of HK$5,374,000 have been
recognised in “Other losses, net” (Note 6) during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

On 6 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose of its entire 100%
controlling interests in Huge Power Group Limited and
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wing Shing
Chemical Company Limited (together, the “HP Group”)
for a cash consideration of HK$13,800,000.

On 3 October 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of its business within the chemical
products segment in the PRC for a cash consideration
of approximately RMB7,891,000 (approximately
HK$10,208,000).Losses on disposals of subsidiaries/
businesses of HK$6,214,000 have been recognised in
"Qther losses, net” (Note 6) during the year ended 31
March 2013.

REBEE-—T-WF=A=1t—HILF
Z K%% B E=77 (87 DT
YEE W  WHEERETHER
m(x EZ%EF'EQ/J?\%TI?EAE PR

AIAREEER(RERDE)BRARZ
BEEERAR)NEBER - BENE
RIEX BB 5,425,000 7T ° H&EH

‘“ﬂ%é%%*%5w4moﬁa
RBEZ_T—NFEF=A=+—HIF
EfE Fﬁﬁﬂéﬂa o FEE ] (FisEe) AHE

27
7 °

RIZZE—ZFRANRE  RNEFHE—
ZEYE=R(EHDIIZ—MHEE
W bAIZIR £ (B 13,800,0007T
& E 7 Huge Power Group Limited
REZEHEARKKEIERA

(FHEHPEE ) 2 226100% E%*’i

Pay

RZT—=—F+A=H ~EHEHE—
BB E=HEINE S  URE
REHARKE 7,891,000 7T ( HHBE
10,208,000 7T ) HEERFE 2T
EmAEER BHE_Z—=F=
A=t+—RHILFEHEWBRAR %
75 E51E75%5 6,214,000 B A EAhfES
18 35 (MEe) AR -
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Notes.to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

39 Disposal of subsidiaries/business (continued) 39 HEMBAR ¥ @)

(c)  The aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries/business at (0 RELERH  MBAR ZEBZ
the respective dates of disposal were as follows: BEFEAENAT
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Consideration satisfied in cash ~ LAIB& 2 R(E 5,425 24,008
Net assets BESE
Property, plant and e
equipment (Note 17) PELCEIVD) 3 1,065
Investment properties REWE
(Note 19) (MfzE19) - 10,000
Inventories TE - 7,200
Trade receivables E ZEYRIE - 18,182
Prepayments, deposits and TENFRIE - e REMEKER
other receivables 173 2,604
Cash and cash equivalents RekFLEEER 341 7,491
Trade payables B FENIA - (4,015)
Other payables H i fE A A (411) (12,305)
Non-controlling interests el (55) -
51 30,222
Gains/losses on disposals of HEWBAR  %EB2
subsidiaries/business, Wees, /1518 - 58 (fidsE6)
net (Note 6) 5,374 (6,214)
Total consideration BRE 5,425 24,008
Total consideration is in the RATHAEL 2 R (E
form of the following:
Cash consideration REeRE 5,425 13,800
Consideration receivables — FEUA(E - 10,208
5,425 24,008
Net cash inflow arising from EEMRBAR, EBES
disposals of subsidiaries/ ZBESMAFH
business:
Cash consideration HERE 5,425 13,800
Less: Cash and cash W BEHERER
equivalents disposed ReEEER (341) (7,491)
5,084 6,309
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e B mRNE

40 Capital commitments 40 BEREIE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Contracted but not provided for EERAERERE
— property, plant and equipment —W - BB KRS 41,029 43,090
The Company does not have any capital commitments as at 31 REZT—MFE=A=+—0H ' ARFIE
March 2014 (2013: Nil). REEMEAERE(CE—=F: ) -
41 Operating leases 41 KEHE
The Group and the Company as lessee AEERAQATEREEAA
At end of the year, the Group and the Company had future RER » ANEE RARFIRIET 0] BUHK
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EHEMANOARRSEB ST :
leases which fall due as follows:
Group Company
REH NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
SE-mFE = ZE-OF  ZZ-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Within one year —FR 6,935 1,978 6,136 753
In the second to MEEAF (BIE
fifth years inclusive BHEMSE) 7,255 383 7,158 =
14,190 2,361 13,294 753

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group and the Company for certain of its office properties.
Leases are negotiated in a range from 1 year to 50 years. No
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

REMENKEAEERARABLESET
MAEMERNNES - HERNF—F
Eh+FHER o BIEMERESIRE

A RR
AIEfAI 2B ©
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41

42

e B mERNE

Operating leases (continued)
The Group as lessor

The Group does not have any rental income of properties and
machinery earned during the year (2013: HK$13,343,000).

Related party transactions

(@) Transactions with related parties

Compensation of key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the
directors and other members of key management of the
Company. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in
Notes 12 and 13 respectively.

Short-term employee benefits 2 Hi{E E @7
Post-employment benefits BERE R T
Share-based payments LARR 9 2. A5F 2 3038

41

42

,%IE

HE @)

FEBER/HAA

REE - AN B £ BT (r] ) 3 I i 25
HE2BA(ZZ— =4 : H 13,343,000

L) °

BRAEALRS

(a)

BEREATZXRS

FTEEZEERABARRRNEEZR
FEEBENEMKE - HEFHHE
SIS0 IR EE 12 RMIFE 13 EE -

2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T R T
10,195 11,202

90 90

- 14,400

10,285 25,692
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e B mRNE

42 Related party transactions (continued) 42 BREALRZ (@)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEBBAEALZHER
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Amount due from substantial & 3= B & 5 FoE

shareholders (Note 11) (BF3E11) 5,450 -
The amount due from key management has the JEWEZEIR A BFIRAB A TIRR
following terms and conditions: R figf
Maximum
At end At beginning outstanding
of year of year  during the year
FAZA
FXR F4) KREESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT
2014 —s-—mE
Mr. Poon Sum ERITE 538 - 538
2013 —E—=F
Mr. Poon Sum BAREE - - -
43 Events after the date of statement 43 Bk A BB EIR
financial position
Subsequent to 31 March 2014, the Company issued bonds RZF-—MF=A=F+—H2%  AR7F
with an aggregate amount of HK$70,000,000 to several RATAREES % 70,000,000 TLEH T & T35
independent third parties with coupon rates ranged from NE=ZT REENTF500%E571%

5.00% to 5.71% and maturities up to 7 years. BEFREH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERNE

44 Particulars of subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014
and 2013 are set out as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company:
ARREESEHMBAR :

China Oil Resources Group Limited

THEREEARAR

Wing Shing Group Limited
XREBERAA

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company:
ARRRESFHMBAR -

America Archi Colors Group Limited

£EBHAN (E8)ERAT

Beijing Arch Technology Company
Limited'
EREHERHRERAT

China Oil Resources Company Limited

PHERARAF

Creative Sense Industrial Limited

HAEZERAR
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Place/ country of
incorporation or
registration/
operations
AL Rz
fEny /B

BVl
RBRLHS

BVI
EBRLHS

BVI
EBRLHS

PRC
Rl

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
B

Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered

share capital
ERTRA/
ERRAEE

100 shares of US$1 each
100 R EREE
1ZARA

52,000 shares of US§1 each
52,000 REHREE
1ZReA

50,000 shares of US$1 each
50,000 A EREE
15 HRA

RMB3,000,000
AR3,000,00070

1 share of HK$1
1 REES® 1 TRk

10,000 shares of HK$1 each
10000 kB HEE
BB TR

44 [IEBRBFE

R_F-—MER-_F-—=F=ZA=1-—
A ADREHBDARFBEHIOT :

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
EAAFBBRIRE/
ARRAEENE DL
2014 2013
~&-BF  Z%=F
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
51.00% 51.00%
51.00% 51.00%
- 100.00%
(Note 39(a))
(F13 39(a))
100.00% 100.00%

Principal activities

IEXH

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

REARRK

Investment holding and
contract service in the PRC

IR R R AR R A DR

Provision of painting service, sale and
distribution of painting products
and contract service in the PRC

R EREAHRT -

HERAHARER
RADRS

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

AR

—ECE-NFEFERE
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< Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statelhénté

e B mRNE

44 Particulars of subsidiaries (continued) 44 KB BB ()
Place/ country of  Nominal value of Proportion of nominal
incorporation or issued share capital/ value of issued share
registration/ registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERRugER,  BRORA/ RARFBERTRE/
WEARER TEwd /AR EMBAEE AMRAEENE AL TEEH
2014 2013
~E-mE ZF-ZF

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company (continued):
ARREESRNNBAR : (8)

Easyrich Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 51.00% Investment holding
EEEBERERAR & 100 REHREEAS 1 THRG RERR
(Note 39(@)
(B 39(a))

Global Songkaer Petroleum Co., Ltd Kazakhstan 100 shares of KZT1,030 each 46.30% 46.30% Provision of exploration drilling
BRRRRARERELLR ER oA 100 R EHREE in Kazakhstan

1,0302XMRA RRER AR HHRE R
Grand Fund International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
REARERAT & 1REREE RERER

A1 TR
Grand Rich Human Resources Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares of HK$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
BEANERERAR & 500,000 REHREE REmR

BB TR
Goal Green Limited BVI 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
RRARAT EERAER 1,000 kB REE hEER

1RTARS
Go Wealthy Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
MERAERAR & 1REREE RERER

A1 TR
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
BRARAT HERTEE 100 REHREE REmR

(E:0) 0
Hai Yue Chemicals Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of HK$1 each 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
BB IRABRAR Bk 1,000,000 R SR E(E RABR

B THRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Place/ country of

incorporation or

registration/
operations

AR/
EEny /B3

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company (continued):

ARARERANNEAR : (B)

Honour Bright Investments Limited

RERAERAR

Jin Long Group Limited
BEEEERAF

Merry Boom Investment Limited

REREERAR

Northeast Oil (China) Development
Company Limited
RA (R E) RRARAA

PetroAsian Energy Exploration
Development Limited

I ey E
BRAT

PetroAsian Energy Finance Limited
(formerly known as “Jin Xin
Investment Limited")

PRI HARAR
(WA [HEREAFRAR])

PetroAsian Energy Limited
HERREERAR

BVI
EBRLHS

BVI
ARRLES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
Bk

44 Particulars of subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered

share capital
BRITRE/
ERRAEE

1 share of US$1

1 REREE
(B30

100 shares of US$1 each

100REHRAEE
1ZTHRG

100 shares of HK$1 each

100 R EREE
A& kG

10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 R ERAE(E
AR THRG

100 shares of HK$1 each

100 RERERE
A1 THRG

1 share of HK$1
1REREE

bt Aol
10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 R EREE
B TRk

e B mERNE

44 B RBEFEE (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
EARMKRERTRE/
AMRAEENED L

2014 2013
~E-mE ZF-ZF

100.00% 100.00%

51.00% 51.00%

100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%

51.00% 51.00%

100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding

RARRK

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REAZR

Investment holding

REARRK
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Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

e B mRNE

Place/ country of
incorporation or
registration/
operations
EME IR/
EEny /B3

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company (continued):

ARARERANNEAR : (B)

PetroAsian Energy (Tunisia) Limited

SRR (RERD) ARAT

PetroAsian Energy Group Limited
MG REEARAT

PetroAsian Energy International Limited
PetroAsian Energy International Limited

Wing Shing Chemical International Limited
Wing Shing Chemical International Limited

Wing Shing Chemical Macao Commercial
Offshore Company Limited
XL TRMERHERBERAA

Wing Shing Colours Limited
XRERBRAA

Shenzhen GaLali Petroleum
and Chemical Limited

AT R TERAR

BVI

EBRAES

BVI
RERAES

Cayman Islands

REHE

BVI
RBRAES

Macau

A

Hong Kong

B

PRC

HE

44 Particulars of subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered

share capital
BRIRA/
EMBEAEE

1,000 shares of US$1 each

1,000 R EHRER 1 ETHRE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 REREE
15 8Re

10,000 shares of US$0.01 each
10000 kB HEE

0.01 ELHRA

1 share of US$1

1REREE

(E3:0): 0

Macau Pataca 500,000
JFI500,0007C

100,000 shares of HK$1 each
100,000k B E(E

BRI TRG

RMBS5,000,000

ARHE5,000,0007

44 [EBRBEFEE (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
EARMKRERTRE/
AMRAEENED L
2014 2013
~E-mE ZF-ZF
- 92.00%
(Note 39(a))
(F39(9))

59.00% 59.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%

Principal activities

IREH

Exploitation and sale of crude
oil in Tunisia

REERSRRREERH

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REARRK

Inactive

BXT

Trading of fuel oil and chemical products
Wkt IERES
Inactive

X

Trading of fuel oil and chemical products

MR IERE S
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Name of subsidiary

WEARZH

Place/ country of

incorporation or

e B mERNE

44 Particulars of subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registration/ registered

operations share capital
HMELEER,  BRORE/
EEny /B3 ERRAEE

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company (continued):

ARARERAONEAR : (8)

Winner Trend Enterprises Limited
SRICRERAT

Topact Holdings Ltd

Topact Holdings Ltd

IRERARMEERAR
IREIRA R EERAR

AR EXRERREERAA
RIFEXHBRREERAA

EERRm AL AR
ARAEAR
EERAHRIARFES
ARAEAR
BITSNESERAR

BITSNESERAR
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BVI
RERLHS

Cyprus

ERRE

PRC
HE

PRC
B

PRC

HE

PRC
HE

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERAE
1ETRRG
1,223 shares of
1 Euro dollar each
123 BB RAE
1B TR

HK$28,000,000
728,000,000 70

RMB12,500,000
AR 12,500,000 70

US$8,000,000

8,000,000%7%

RMB5,000,000
ARH5,000,0007C

44 B RBEFEE (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/ registered capital

held by the Company
EARMKRERTRE/
AMRAEENED L
2014 2013
~E-mE ZF-ZF
100.00% 100.00%
46.77% 46.77%
- 49.98%
(Note 39(a))
(F3£39)
100.00% 100.00%
95.00% 95.00%
100.00% 100.00%

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding
RARR

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

RARRK

Oil exploitation and exploration service

in the PRC
RAEE SRR R RERES

Exploitation and sale of
crude oil in the PRC
RABFRREERR

Coal trading
KxE%

—ECE-NFEFERE



Five Years Financial Summary -~

FMBEE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
S e Tana s TG T s —¥-0OF
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
BETT A%TT ARt A%Tr A%t

REVENUE Wz 307,982 282,398 339,967 991,810 982,327
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE VN/NGIEZ 2PN
TO OWNERS OF e B

THE COMPANY
(262,280) (305,507) (176,864) (115,255) (151,155)

REVENUE
HK$'000 Wz
BT 991,810 982,327
10,000,000 — —
800,000
600,000
400,000 339,967
307,982 TR
200,000
Y 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
AATEE AEGEE
HKS000
T T 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
0
250,000
-100,000
(115,255)
-150,000
(151,155)
-200,000 (176,864)
-250,000
(262,280)
-300,000
(305,507)
-350,000
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Five Years Financial Summary -

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY

HK$'000
BT

900,000
800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000

0

808,522

2010

AT BEE

844,985

2011
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
SR TR SR =T F L 2 =G —¥-AfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT IT BT BT BEFT BETT
1,065,923 1,020,766 888,124 885,144 934,955
(257,401) (175,781) (190,140) (162,371) (329,141)
808,522 844,985 697,984 722,773 605,814

TOTAL EQUITY

A
697,984 722,773
' —
605,814
2012 2013 2014



PODERERABRAF
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Tel B &E: (852) 2698 6093 Fax {5H: (852) 3580 7793

Website #91E: www.petroasian.com
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